i Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

General Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Date: Tuesday 27 September 2016

Time: 9.30 am

Place: Council Chamber, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square,
Hereford, HR1 2HX

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Tim Brown, Governance Services
Tel: 01432 260239
Email: torown@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format, please call Tim Brown, Governance Services on 01432
260239 or e-mail torown@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the meeting of the General Overview
& Scrutiny Committee

Membership

Chairman Councillor WLS Bowen
Vice-Chairman Councillor CA Gandy

Councillor JM Bartlett
Councillor MJK Cooper
Councillor J Hardwick
Councillor EPJ Harvey
Councillor EL Holton
Councillor JF Johnson
Councillor AJW Powers
Councillor NE Shaw
Councillor EJ Swinglehurst
Councillor A Warmington
Councillor SD Williams

Co-optees
(education issues) Mr P Burbidge Roman Catholic Church
Mrs A Fisher Parent Governor Representative: Primary Schools
Mr P Sell Church of England



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

10.

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive apologies for absence.

NAMED SUBSTITUTES

To receive details of members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a
member of the committee.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by members.

MINUTES (TO FOLLOW)

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2016.

SUGGESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

To consider suggestions from the public on issues the committee could
scrutinise in the future.

(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is raised. Consideration
will be given to whether it should form part of the committee’s work programme when
compared with other competing priorities.)

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

To note questions received from the public and the items to which they
relate.

(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a scrutiny committee meeting subject to the
guestion being directly relevant to an item listed on the agenda below. If you have a question
you would like to ask then please submit it no later than 5.00 pm on Thursday 22
September 2016 to tbrown@herefordshire.gov.uk)

CUSTOMER SERVICES AND LIBRARIES

To seek the committee’s views on the model for future operation of customer
services and libraries across the county considering the budget pressures of
the local authority.

ECONOMIC MASTER PLAN

To seek the committee’s views on the draft Economic Master Plan for the
period 2017-2031 and consider whether to make any recommendations to
inform cabinet’s consideration of the master plan.

WORK PROGRAMME

To consider the committee’s work programme.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next scheduled meeting is Tuesday 14 November 2015 from 9.30 am.

27 SEPTEMBER 2016

Pages

41 - 142

143 - 162






The public’s rights to information and attendance at meetings

You have aright to: -

Attend all Council, Cabinet, committee and sub-committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

Inspect minutes of the Council and all committees and sub-committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all committees and sub-committees.

Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, committees and sub-committees.

Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, committees and sub-committees and to inspect and copy documents.

Public transport links

The Shire Hall is a few minutes walking distance from both bus stations located in the town
centre of Hereford.



Recording of this meeting

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting.

Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware.

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the
reporting to ensure that they comply.

Fire and emergency evacuation procedure
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit
and make your way to the Fire Assembly Point in the Shire Hall car park.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other
personal belongings.

The Chairman or an attendee at the meeting must take the signing in sheet so it can be
checked when everyone is at the assembly point.



AGENDA ITEM 7

Herefordshire
Council
Meeting: General overview and scrutiny committee
Meeting date: 27 September 2016
Title of report: Customer services and libraries
Report by: Assistant director communities

Classification
Open
Key decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards affected

Countywide

Purpose

To seek the committee’s views on the model for future operation of customer services and
libraries across the county considering the budget pressures of the local authority.

Recommendation

THAT: the committee consider the options of the report and make
recommendations as to how impacts on the community may be
mitigated.

Alternative options

1 An alternative to the recommendation is that general overview and scrutiny
committee delay commenting on the customer services and libraries report until after
consideration by Cabinet as part of the call-in process.

Reasons for recommendations

2 The reason for the recommendation is for general overview and scrutiny committee
to contribute to the delivery model for customer services and libraries in light of the
opportunity to meet changing trends to accessing and using council services and
meet the budget saving as outlined in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732




Key considerations

The Library Service

3 Despite the central library being closed there were over 500,845 visits to the libraries
in the county in 2015-16. In Herefordshire over 23% of local residents are active
library members (having had a library transaction within the last two years). In 2015
over 18% of people in the county had at least one item on loan.

4 The Schools Library Service provides books and project material to over 50 primary
schools that purchase the service. The Delivered Library Service is also a targeted
service that supplies books and talking books to people who are housebound and
unable to access a library. The service delivers to around 160 individuals and 30
residential homes and is often described as a lifeline for people who are at risk of
feeling isolated and lonely.

5 The County Library Service manages all the systems and stock services to support
the frontline libraries. The service also operates the Reading Group scheme for
nearly 70 groups, library services for children and young people, local studies,
digitisation projects, bibliotherapy, work with special groups, refurbishment projects,
funding bids, community outreach and partnerships schemes, reader development
campaigns, support and training for community libraries, and work with library Friends
groups. The service also supports the rural book scheme based in community
facilities such as community shops and parish halls.

Customer Services

6 Customer services provides the corporate phone contact and face to face contact in
Hereford and the market towns. The tables below summarise the level of contact for
2015/6. In addition to the figures below there is an additional 10,261 emails the
service deals with.

7 Phone contact is predominantly received at Hereford customer service centre.
Though switchboard and INFO calls are high volume, they are also quick response.
Council Tax is both high volume and lengthy queries, with peak times (March / April)
when the bills are sent to every premise in the county and in June when reminders
are distributed. The contact centres work best through good interaction between
services and compatible technologies — e.g. waste and planning queries. Average
waiting time for the calls to be answered varies between services and months, but
generally no more than 3 minutes.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732



Face to Face / payment
transactions (Hereford) Care Act 30
Council Tax 4,247 Council Tax 41,454
Council Tax Support 1,759 ECA (exceptional circumstances
Business Rates 176 award) 890
Housing Benefits 9,496 FIS (family information service) 254
Planning 4,079 :f,’\llgr(l?wing 122;?
Esc::;g:t 133;1 Switchboard 58,987
Housing Solutions 2,492 Waste Bulky 2,829
: \Waste General 10,610
Total Face to Face 40,057 Market town calls 59
Payments 22,842 142,657

For face-to-face, reception services are high volume but with low transaction which
directs people to web use, services or quick resolution (e.g. issuing a form). Council
tax is high volume throughout the year, though most support is often for Housing
Benefit queries.

For the market towns customer service the volume of queries is significantly less, with
high volume of payments, general queries and benefit advice / support.

Customer Service Face to Face enquiries Payments - Benefitsand

Centres council tax queries
%

Leominster 6,764 4721 39

Ross-on-Wye 5,529 2,378 39

Ledbury 2,422 2,683 20

Kington 478 1,823 15

Bromyard 1,588 1,609 15

totals 16,781 13,214

10

11

Hereford Library

Hereford Library is currently closed due to finding asbestos in the building when
planning improvement works took place to accommodate WISH (Wellbeing
Information and Signposting for Herefordshire). To compensate, additional hours
have been allocated to Belmont library and a temporary library provided at Hereford
Town Hall. Cabinet in May 2016 agreed to invest in reoccupying the Library at Broad
Street with Hereford Library Users Group working on a long term development plan
for the site.

Hereford Library is the key centre for reference material, and will in usual
circumstances see the highest use, reflective of the higher population in Hereford and
that people will come to the library from different parts of the county as part of a wider
visit to the city. There are 5.95 FTE Library Assistants and one FTE supervisor who
provide the staffing for both Hereford and Belmont. Hereford will have two self-

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732




service kiosks when reopened.

Opening Visitors  Visitors Visitors Loans PC Visits Operating = Cost per

hours 2012/3 2014/5 2015/6 2015/6 hours per cost £ head £
per year hour**

37 | 227,240 | 184,434 96,692 | 101,493 7,824 50 237,725 1.29*
*based on usual year of 2014/15; **based on average opening for the year for all sites.

Belmont Library

12 The library at Belmont is based at the community centre owned and operated by the
South Wye Community Association, on the southern edge of Hereford City in the
Belmont Rural ward. It serves a catchment from the immediate area, as well as
people from Hereford City and those coming into Hereford from the Abergavenny
Road. The local authority pays a rent to occupy the space and sustaining the service
has been supported by grants from Hereford City Council and Belmont Rural Parish
Council. The association is keen to provide a range of other services to people using
the site. Staffing is provided by the local authority overseen by the supervisor in
Hereford. Due to the current closure of Hereford Library, Belmont is offering
increased opening hours of 38 per week. The usual number of hours would be 22.5.
Belmont has one self-service kiosk that accounts for approximately 20% of stock
issues.

Opening  Visitors | Visitors | Visitors | Loans PC Visits Operating = Cost per

hours 2012/3 | 2014/5 2015/6 @ 2015/6 hours per hour cost head £
per year
38 | 50,916 | 22,527 | 34,697 45,877 1,031 22 29,259 0.84*
*based on usual year of 2014/15

Market Town Centres

13 All of the market town sites are a combined library and customer service centre. The
staff are trained in Making Every Contact Count (MECC) and will deal with a range of
queries and referrals. Since 2013 the staffing at the centres has reduced and there
has been a corresponding reduction in opening hours combined with people being
able to access services on-line. WISH have a “pop-up” service and healthy lifestyles
will use the centres as key community facilities, considered “safe” and neutral
venues.

14 There are 10 FTE staff covering Ross and Leominster, 3.5 FTEs in Ledbury, and 1
FTE for Bromyard. There are 2 supervisors — one for the north (Leominster and
Bromyard) and one for the south (Ledbury, Ross and supporting the community
library in Colwall). There is one self-service kiosk in each of the market town sites.

Ross Library and Customer Service Centre

15 A combined customer service and library function at one site along with Job Centre+
that pays a contribution in rent.

Opening | Library Visits Visits Loans Visits per = PC hrs Customer Cost Cost per

hours 2012/3 2014/5 2015/6 2015/6 hour per year services peryear£  head £
face to face

35.5 115,219 116,789 103,683 97,997 56 6,991 5,529 185,748 1.79

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

10



Leominster Library and Customer Service Centre

16 A combined customer service and library function at one site.

Opening | Library Visits Visits Loans Visits per | PC hrs Customer Cost Cost per

hours 2012/3 2014/5 2015/6 2015/6 hour per year  services peryear£ head £
face to face

35.5 105,283 109,082 102,211 109,912 55 8,424 6,764 219,737 2.15

Ledbury Library and Customer Service Centre

17 A combined customer service and library function at one site, along with a range of
other local authority and community functions. The library was relocated with
customer services in 2015 as a major refurbishment and investment in the Masters
House. The visitor numbers (which is counted for the library area) has increased
considerably since the new building was opened which has won a number of awards
with Herefordshire Council as the client (including RIBA best building for the West
Midlands). The number of loans has increased but not as significantly as visitors
(loans for 2014/5 - 50,200). The staff in Ledbury provide the “front of house” duties
for the building with the integrated site designed to create efficiencies reflected in the
low cost per head.

Opening | Library Visits Visits Loans Visits per | PC hrs Customer Cost Cost per

hours 2012/3 2014/5 2015/6 2015/6 hour per year  Services peryear£  head £
face to face

32.5 72,583 48,308 110,450 57,545 65 3,126 2,683 58,120 0.53

Bromyard Centre

18 The library and customer service centre is in a shared facility with Halo who provide a
range of leisure activities. The library relocated within the site earlier in the year and
this has supported a reduction in facility charges. The number of visitors reflects the
proportion of users of the site to the library service.

19 A reduction in use over the last year.

Opening | Library Visits Visits Loans Visits per PC hrs Customer Cost Cost per

hours 2012/3 2014/5 2015/6 2015/6  hour peryear  services peryear£  head £
face to face

24 50,916 18,669 12,448 | 17,560 9 1,459 1,588 46,854 3.76

Kington Centre

20 In March 2014 Cabinet agreed to the pilot of a Well-Being Centre at the Kington
Centre, which has been operational since May 2015, and has funding via Public
Health until March 2017. Funding is not available beyond that date.

21 PC use is high in comparison to other centres for its size, though visitor numbers
have decreased despite introduction of the well-being centre.

Opening | Library Visits Visits Loans Visits per PC hrs Customer Cost Cost per
hours 2012/3 2014/5 2015/6 2015/6  hour per year  services face peryear£  head £
to face
18 36,227 22,085 20,769 | 17,037 22 3,302 478 18,569 0.89
With Public Health funding 118,569 5.71

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

11



Community Libraries

22 A network of community libraries operate across the county. They are all financed
and operated differently by the community, with the county library service providing
support, advice and training for volunteers; financially supporting the public access
PCs; manage the book stock; and run campaigns at the sites such as the summer
reading challenge. In Colwall the parish council raised the precept for the cost of a
paid member of staff from customer services to cover some of the opening hours
working in conjunction with volunteers.

Library Hours Visits Loans Items No. of Computer Computer
open per | per per reserved per public sessions hours per
week year year year computers per year year

Colwall 155 | 11,138 | 13,241 1,482 5 1,324 1,194

Leintwardine 9.5 2,769 5,183 563 1 77 49

Weobley 6 2,491 4,454 482 3 152 355

Peterchurch 10 1,890 3,108 429 0 n/a n/a

Options for Customer Services and Libraries

23 The Medium Financial Plan has a target budget saving of £760k from a budget of
£1.8m. There are four options for meeting the savings plan:

= Savings programme

Centralised model

Retained libraries and central service
Enhanced service

Savings Programme (option 1)

24 This option is based on instigating a savings programme though retaining the current
pattern of library and customer services in the different sites and related functions
including support for community libraries, schools library service and delivered library
service.

Savings programme

Opl.a | Community libraries at Belmont and Bromyard — for the library to be retained at
Belmont to become a community library with the local authority continue to cover
staffing, support with book stock, core staffing, training of volunteers, public access
PCs and wifi — savings made on facility costs. In Bromyard for the library to be run
in partnership with Halo, with a SLA to oversee staffing of the library with customer
services retained on an appointment basis — savings made on reduced staff costs
and facilities.

Opl.b | Renegotiation of the Book Fund — the book fund supports the quality of stock
available impacting on use. £30k has been re-negotiated as a reduction for the
same stock level through a regional consortium.

Opl.c | Changes to Delivered Library Services / Schools Library Services — this will look at
reorganising via staffing and charger care homes for visits.

Opl.d | Savings from county library function — a range of reductions including staffing levels
on non-replacement of vacant posts and reorganising the delivery model.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

12



Opl.e | Council Tax — transfer of service for the back office to take responsibility for their
calls, creating flexibility within the team to support peak demand shared across the
benefit service.

Opl.f | Reduction in staff at Franklin House — equivalent for 2 FTEs to compensate for
intended increased use of the internet to access customer services.

Opl.g | Kington Library — provide reinvestment to sustain the library service. The space
available for hire to any of the established well being groups / services that wish to
continue. Customer Services retained on an appointment basis.

Opl.h | Charging, income and withdrawals - to increase a range of charging across the
service, withdrawal of newspapers, and periodicals.

Opl.i | Relocation of Hereford Customer Services — savings to the service for the relocation
to Blueschool House.

Centralised Service (option 2)

25 This option is based on the proposition outlined in the budget consultation of 2015,
with all customer service and library functions operational from Hereford. The phone
line would also remain, though most contact would be provided via the web.
Organisations would be able operate the libraries as community facilities covering
costs with some support from the county library service.

Savings programme

Op2.a | Libraries in Ross, Leominster, Kington, Ledbury, Belmont, Bromyard available to become
community libraries with all customer service withdrawn from these centres. For those that do
become community libraries central support could be provided regarding book stock and PC
access. Saving on staff and facilities.

Op2.b | Withdrawal of Delivered Library Services for staffing and revenue costs.

Op2.c | Reduction of central support — elements retained to support community libraries and schools
library service based on staff savings, book stock and revenue costs.

Op2.d | Retain staffing level of Hereford Customer Services to deal with increase in calls, but transfer
responsibility for Council Tax calls to the back office.

Retained libraries and central service (option 3)

26 This option would be to retain the library functions in market towns and Hereford and
support for community libraries. Customer services remodel to be based on face to
face contact in Hereford, phone and web. The customer service queries are
generally based on housing benefits advice and payments — payments to be
supported by a paypoint scheme and improved digital offer. Introduction of “Better off
Model” as an on-line tool for benefits and employment, and welfare and financial
assessment team provide support for vulnerable and elderly clients needing help.

Saving programme

Op3.a | Libraries in Ross, Leominster, Ledbury maintained with the withdrawal of customer services
element creating a staff saving.
Op3.b | Items listed above in option 1.

Enhanced Service (option 4)

27 This option considers different services that could be delivered from customer service
centres and libraries. This is happening more at national level within the remaining
library infrastructure, and is not an uncommon feature within Herefordshire with the

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

13



combined library and customer function, existing co-location with Halo, staff already
trained in Making Every Contact Count (MECC), and WISH / healthy lifestyles
providing services from libraries. This could be based on the early help concept to
reduce the need for people to access high cost intervention services.

28 Libraries in Ross, Leominster, Ledbury and Kington reflective on demographic need
include a “well being / early help” element, and customer services by appointment.
Staff retrained to give advice and support in the following areas:
= Childcare and free places
= Debt advice and areas of support for finance
= Signposts to community well-being schemes
= Use of the venue for well-being, events and courses and classes
= Quick health checks, including blood pressure, weight and heart checks
= [T training and advocacy, and web navigation
= Volunteering opportunities
Op4.a | A combination of retraining staff to cover well being / advice based on reinvestment
in the service with reduced employee costs due to appointment only for customer
services.
Op4.a | Items listed above in option 1.

Community impact

29

30

Customer services and libraries in the market towns is supported by one front-line
team, whilst in Hereford there is separate customer service centre and library
reflecting the volumes and nature of enquiries. The service also operates the
corporate contact centre and the venues will host a number of other services and
community initiatives.

The services have seen considerable change in the last three years responding to
customer trends, the increased use of digital access, and cost savings. Service
remodelling has reduced the requirement for customers to contact the council in the
first place and instigated self-serve. Service changes have included:

e Automated calls to manage queries, relevant services taking responsibility for
their telephone contact, duty officer within planning service to support queries that
cannot be addressed via first contact, Environmental Health taking responsibility
for their calls

Increased opportunity for on-line payments and services

Self-serve library kiosk at Hereford Library and each market town site

Introduction of appointments for specific customer service queries

Introduction non-cash payments for the majority of transactions

Job Centre+ at Ross Library

Transfer of Leintwardine, Colwall and Weobley as community libraries

Reduced opening hours at each of the centres

50% reduction in staffing

Opening of combined community and service centre at Masters House in Ledbury
Free wifi use at centres

Kington Centre as a pilot of health and well being hub.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

14




31

The illustration below shows the reduction of customer service face to face and
phone service as part of the programme to management demand and reduce the
requirement for people to contact the council.

2012 Face to face: 96,748 Phone: 174,485
2015-6 Face to face: 56,838 Phone: 142,657

Equality duty

32

33

34

The equality duty is in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. It ensures that public
bodies consider the needs of all individuals in shaping policy, in delivering services,
and in relation to employees. The duty requires that when exercising public
functions, public service providers must have due regard to the need to:

¢ Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by the Act

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

The duty relates to different groups who share any of the “protected characteristics”
of age, sex, pregnancy and maternity, disability, race, marriage and civil partnership,
religion or belief, sexual orientation. A needs and impact assessment is one tool that
may assist decision makers to comply with the public sector equality duty.

The biggest impact on people on any customer service and library change will be on
people with a combination of characteristics, specifically linked to low income,
aspects of age, rural isolation and aspects of disability.

Financial implications

35

The savings target as outlined in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is
£760k for customer service and libraries spread equally over 2017/8 and 2018/9. The
options create the following savings, with some of the options falling short of this
target and will consequently fall on other services:

Option 1: £370k

Option 2: £770k

Option 3: £510k

Option 4: £420k

Legal implications

36

37

Under the 1964 Public Libraries and Museums Act (PLMA 1964), local authorities in
England have a statutory duty to provide a comprehensive and efficient library service
“for all persons desiring to make use thereof”.

When fulfilling its duty under section 7, a local authority must have regard to the

desirability:

e Of securing that facilities are available for the borrowing of or reference to books
and other printed matter, pictures, films and other materials

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

15


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1964/75/crossheading/the-public-library-service

38

39

40

e That these facilities are sufficient in number, range and quality to meet the
general and special requirements of adults and children
e Of encouraging children and adults to make full use of the library service.

The Secretary of State has the power to make a remedial order against a library
authority following a local inquiry. In determining whether to order an inquiry, the
Secretary of State gives consideration to a number of factors, including:

o Whether there is any serious doubt or uncertainty as to whether the local authority
is (or may cease to be) complying with its legal obligation to provide a
comprehensive and efficient library service

o Whether the local authority appears to be acting in a careless or unreasonable
way

e Whether the decision is or may be outside the proper bounds of the local
authority’s discretion, such as a capricious decision to stop serving a particularly
vulnerable group in the local community

e Whether the local authority appears to have failed to consult affected individuals
or to carry out significant research into the effects of its proposals

e Whether the local authority has failed to explain, analyse or properly justify its
proposals

e Whether the local proposals are likely to lead to a breach of national library policy

e The advantages of local decision making by expert and democratically
accountable local representatives

o Whether there is any further good reason why a local inquiry should be ordered.

These factors are set out in decision letters in relation to complaints made to the
Secretary of State that a local library authority is failing to carry out its statutory
duties. The power to order a local inquiry has been utilised on only one occasion
since 1964, with a public inquiry in Wirral in 2009.

In October 2014, the Secretary of State, following receipt of a complaint in regards to
Sheffield Library Service, issued a ‘minded to’ letter, and in March 2015 issued a final
decision letter. Quoted in that correspondence was a response relating to the case of
Bailey v London Borough of Brent [2011] EWHC 2572 (Admin) “A comprehensive
service cannot mean that every resident lives close to a library. This has never been
the case. Comprehensive has therefore been taken to mean delivering a service that
is accessible to all residents using reasonable means, including digital technologies.
An efficient service must make the best use of the assets available in order to meet
its core objectives and vision, recognising the constraints on council resources.
Decisions about the Service must be embedded within a clear strategic framework
which draws upon evidence about needs and aspirations across the diverse
communities of the borough”.

Risk management

41

42

43

Risks will vary depending on the option agreed, though in general terms key risks are
concerned with:

The impact of withdrawal customer services and libraries from the market towns will
have a high impact on people who need support.

Impact on other services where support may be needed to customers and users of
the services.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

16


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/a-local-inquiry-into-the-public-library-service-provided-by-wirral-metropolitan-borough-council
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-inquiry-into-library-provision-in-sheffield
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/decision-letter-on-local-inquiry-into-library-provision-in-sheffield
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/decision-letter-on-local-inquiry-into-library-provision-in-sheffield

44

45

46

Reducing the opportunity to make payments leads to a greater level of debt and
reduced income from the authority.

Not reaching the budget savings of the MTFS

Judicial review based on the authority not meeting the requirements under the 1964
Public Libraries and Museums Act (PLMA 1964).

Consultees

a7

48

The consultation on Herefordshire Council’s priorities and budget for 2016-2020 took
place between July and October 2015 and was completed by 1,979 people. 52% of
respondees indicated that their lowest preference for savings was the reduction of
customer services and libraries. The second lowest preference, at 21%, was the
withdrawal of public transport subsidy and increase the cost for discretionary
educational travel. The budget consultation for 2017-2020 will conclude in October
2016.

The Library and Customer Services Research Consultation took place between 27
June and 5 August 2016. In total there was 2,254 responses comprising of users and
non-users, sharing views through on-line and paper surveys, facilitated response and
focus group. The final report is published on the council website. Over 2,000
comments are being analysed about how any changes may affect individual
respondents and those with particular (protected) characteristics.

Appendices

Presentation slides for general overview and scrutiny committee — 27 September 2016

Background papers

None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Natalia Silver, Assistant Director Communities on Tel (01432) 260732

17


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1964/75/crossheading/the-public-library-service
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1964/75/crossheading/the-public-library-service




General Overview and Scrutiny Committee
27t September 2016
Customer Services and Libraries

6T

Herefordshire
Council



Overview

Cabinet on 13t October
Savings plan outlined in the MTFS
Total savings target: £760k of £1.8m budget
Services in scope:
Customer Services

0¢

Libraries

County Library Service including support for
community libraries

Delivered Library Service
Schools Library Service

)

Herefordshire
Council



National picture

Trends Library use in England fell dramatically
Decrease in libra ry use over last decade, figures show

Readers making use of the service fell by 30.7% overall since 2005, although
poorer readers’ usage has not shown any decline

Increase digital use, wifi access

. £0.15 £2.83 £8.62
Demands of safeguarding e pophomtmoe poraeto o ot

Concept of public sector customer services

Local government response

Lancashire council to close more than
20 libraries

Despite more than 7,000 responses to a recent consultation on library cuts, county council
confirms more than 20 closures, with others left unstaffed

Rationalisation of sites
Review the library “offer”
Great links with health and well being

Reduce the need to contact council

Swindon set to close 11
of its 15 libraries

Services on-line

)

Herefordshire
Council



Contact where relevant

2012 Face to face: 96,748 Phone: 174,485
2015-6 Face to face: 56,838 Phone: 142,657

5 Herefordshire
Council




Decision making evidence

Value for money

Use of the service — facts and figures
Public consultation

Needs and impact assessment

€¢

Future opportunities
Legal requirement

- Herefordshire

Council



Budget

144

overview

Sites and Revenue 2l
. Rent Rates Utilities . Income Staffing Book Total
Services (sites)
Fund
Hereford Library 0 30,805 | 17.790 1835| -26.981| 151.859| 62416 | 237.725
Ross 19,300 24,404 | 13,006 580 | -14,068 | 151,667 | 29459 | 185748
Leominster 200 25,636 7.858 1,302 | -16.499 | 163,382 | 37.858 | 219737
Ledbury 0 0 556 5164 | -14,730 51,690 | 15,440 58,120
Belmont 5,960 0 0 0 -1,658 14269 | 10,688 29,259
Kington 0 7.080 3,732 110 -1,500 0| 9147 18,569
Bromyard 0 0 0 9,065 1,530 31867 | 7.182 46,584
Delivered Library 0 0 0 9.175 92| 94717| 12789 | 116569
Services
Schools Library 0 0 0| 18430| -66.000| 40121| 13,000 5 551
Service
Community 1,030 4,620 6.170 o| -13.597 36,577 | 20,556 55 355
libraries
Courier Service 0 0 0 25,500 0 0 0 25,500
Franklin House 40,000 24998 | 27.430| 26.112| -40.978 | 479.508 0| 557,070
County Library 0 0 0| 10,135 0| 198,033| 17.485| 225653
Team
IT Costs 0 0 0| 103,300 0 0 0| 103,300
crand Total 27,800 | 117,543 | 76,542 | 210,708 | 197,633 | 1,413,690 | 236,000 | 1,884,740

Herefordshire
Council




Use of libraries

Library Hours Visits per Visits per | Loans ltems No. of public | Computer | Computer
open per | year hour peryear | reserved | computers sessions hours per
week per year per year year

Hereford / Town Hall 37 96,692 50 101,493 8,677 18/0 11,594 7,824

Hereford 2014-15 37/ 184,434 96 | 175,638 11,840 18 25,359 15,555

Leominster 35.5 102,211 55 109,912 6,984 12 11,775 8,424

Ross-on-Wye 35.5 103,683 56 97,997 7,093 11 10,139 6,991

Ledbury 32.5 110,450 65 57,545 3,870 5 4,311 3,126

Belmont 38 34,697 22 45,877 4,084 2 2,105 1,031

Belmont 2014-15 22.5 22,527 19 26,100 2,390 2 1,028 849
&1 | Kington 18 20,769 22 17,037 1,880 7 2,265 3,302

Bromyard 24 12,448 9 17,560 1,769 7 2,114 1,459

Colwall 15.5 11,138 15 13,241 1,482 5 1,324 1,194

Leintwardine 9.5 2,769 7 5,183 563 1 77 49

Weobley b 2,491 8 4,454 482 3 152 355

Peterchurch 10 1,890 4 3,108 429 0 n/a n/a

Delivered Services n/a 1,607 n/a 22,218 2,161 0 n/a n/a

Stock Unit n/a n/a n/a 15,968 315 0 n/a n/a

Herefordshire 261.5 500,845 314 | 511,593 39,789 71 45,856 33,755

Visits per hour based on average hours open per week 2015-16 (some sites increased opening hours part way through the year)

Herefordshire
Council




Loans by borrower type

m Under Five - 5.5%

W Access Under Five - 0.1%

8.5% 5.5%

B Junior (5- 11 years) - 12.4%
1.4%

W Access Junior - 0.2%

2.0%__— 0.2%

2.4% W Teenage (12 - 17 years) - 2.4%
8.4%

0.2% B Access Teenage - 0.2%

9¢

Adult (18+ years) - 54.8%
M Access Adult - 8.4%
Reader Groups - 2.0%
= Rural Book Schemes - 1.4%
54.8% W Delivered Library Services - 4.2%

Playgroups, Primary and High Schools - 8.5%

Herefordshire
Council



70,000 +

60,000 -

50,000 -

40,000 -

Number of loans

Loans by
borrower
age 2015-16

10,000 -

30,000 +

0 }

$ SN SN A S (N S SR UNNE A SR G S )
$ R R A R O L G
Borrower age (years)

Lc

800 -

700

600 -

Age profile of
. computer and
wifi users
2015-16

100 -

500

Number of users

RN e Ol 5 G
RS S

User age (years)

Herefordshire
Council



Support for benefits and payments

Site Total face to Payments | Payments | Benefits Benefits
face no. % queries queries
no. %.

Hereford 62,899 22,842 36% 9,496 15%
Ledbury 5,105 2,683 53% 816 16%
Leominster 11,485 4,721 41% 3,330 29%
N Ross 7,907 2,378 30% 2,293 29%
Bromyard 3,197 1,609 50% 351 11%
Kington 2,301 1,823 79% 184 8%

)

Herefordshire
Council



Public consultation

There were 2,254 responses to the user survey: just
over a 1,000 online; 71 face to face interviews in most of
the library and customer service centres; the rest were
paper surveys from all of the library and customer
service centres in Herefordshire. 140 online and face to
face interviews for non-user responses.

6¢

Herefordshire
Council




Which location did you visit? (tick all that Number 2016 2013
apply) % %
Hereford Library (Broad Street or Town Hall) 702 31 34
Leominster Centre 667 30 14*
Ross Centre 492 22 15
Ledbury Centre (Master's House) 335 15 14*
Belmont Library 279 12 6
Hereford Centre (Franklin House) 142 6 7
Kington Centre 129 6 6
Bromyard Centre 111 ) 4
Colwall Library 55 2 4
8 Leintwardine Library 36 2 2
Weobley Library 32 1 2
Peterchurch Library 19 1 <1
Total responses 2,233 99%
Not answered 21 1%
Base 2,254

*2013 Only library services provided.

)

Herefordshire
Council



T€

How often do you use any library [ customer service centre?

Rarely(less than Very regularly(2-3
monthly), 6% times a week or
more), 16%

Infrequently
(once a month),
28%
Regularly (once a
Base: 2,254 week), 46%

Herefordshire
Council



ce

What do you generally use a library or customer

service centre for? (tick all that apply) Number B2016as 2013 %
Borrow, renew or return a book or other item 1,985 88 *
QOrder a book 1,009 45 *
Obtain information 932 41 6
Pay a pill or access a council service (e.g. query on 597 26 5
Council Tax, bus pass, blue badge, etc)

Research 246 24 15
Other reason (please specify) 491 22 11
Use the public access computers 416 18 13
Attend an event (e.g. bounce and rhyme, summer

reading challeng(e, ﬁealth event, worbll(shc,lp) 2o : LS
Use the Wi-fi 191 8 not asked
Speak to an advisor (e.g. home point, planning, 156 7 5
welfare, SSAFA)

Visit to Job Centre Plus (Ross only) 20 1 not asked
Total responses 2,227 99

Not answered 27 1

Base 2,254

* The options in the 2013 survey were slightly different here: 'borrow a book or

another item' (69% of respondents) and ‘renew or return a book/item' (55%)

Herefordshire
Council




What is important to you about customer services and libraries? (tick all that
apply)

Range of stock available*

Access information

Speak to a customer services advisor
Events and exhibitions

Supports my health and well being
Free wifi and access to PCs

A good place to go with children

€e

Meeting people

Feel less lonely

| need help to complete forms **

0% 208 4056 605 80%% 100%
% of all respondents (Base:2,195)
H Important m Not sure m Not important

2 Herefordshire
Council




What else would you liketo be ableto use or do at the library/ customer
services centre? (tick all that apply)

Courses and classes

Information, advice and signposting
IT coursesincluding intemet training
Eventsfor children

Specific groups or activities

Health checks

ve

Eventsfor teenagers

Other services/ organisations

6 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%
% ofrespondents (Base: 2,254)

0

]

Herefordshire
Council



GE

Access via

How_do you access the following the council's Access Don't Row
services? (% of non uses respondents) website elsewhere | use/need total
Books for adults 1 63 26 91
Books for children 1 36 53 90
DVDs & CDs 1 59 30 90
Newspapers & magazines 1 62 27 91
Events/activities 9 64 16 91
Study/research 4 61 24 90
Pay a bill to the council 29 51 14 91
Apply to the council (blue badge, planning, 24 21 44 90
benefits)

Contact the council 42 31 18 91
Access information and advice 39 41 11 89
Other 4 9 18 32
Other (please specify) 0 0 13 13
Total responses 95
Not answered 6

Base = 140 respondents

Herefordshire
Council




Opportunities and equalities

Courses
and
lasses

Work with

500k Disability BEESaE

Visit

Benefit
support

Safe Technology Self-serve
places

Families

» Income

Isolated
and
lonely

Children
centre

provision Community
iInvolvement

Links with
health




LE

On-line

187,200
total pop

Herefordshire
Council

17.8% of 13,900

15{36300 16+ pop 2n7é§g? 50% not people
srlETen never used U interested will not
pop the internet connect

Reasons for households not having internet access, 2015

%
Don't need internet (not useful, not interesting, etc) 53
Lack of skills 31
Equipment costs too high 14
Access costs too high (telephone, broadband subscription) 12
Have access to the internet elsewhere
Privacy or security concerns
Physical or sensorial disability 5
Other reason 14

Internet Access - Households and Individuals 2015, Office for National Statistics, 6 August 2015

173,000
opportunity to
connect



8¢

Legal Position

“A comprehensive service cannot mean that every resident lives close to a
library. This has never been the case. Comprehensive has therefore been
taken to mean delivering a service that is accessible to all residents using
reasonable means, including digital technologies. An efficient service must
make the best use of the assets available in order to meet its core objectives
and vision, recognising the constraints on council resources. Decisions
about the Service must be embedded within a clear strategic framework
which draws upon evidence about needs and aspirations across the diverse
communities of the borough”.

Bailey v London Borough of Brent /rnpac
[2011] EWHC 2572 (Admin) elagyy | Iseg,
Oty e e

s

Herefordshire
Council



Option 1 - Savings programme

Option 2 - Centralised service

Option 3 - Retained libraries and central customer services
Option 4 - Enhanced service

6€

Hereford Library

Leominster Library

Outsourced service

Library and Customer Services Plan

)

Herefordshire
Council






AGENDA ITEM 8

Herefordshire
Council
Meeting: General overview and scrutiny committee
Meeting date: 27 September 2016
Title of report: Economic master plan
Report by: Economic development manager

Classification

Open

Key decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards affected

Countywide

Purpose

To seek the committee’s views on the draft Economic Master Plan for the period 2017-2031
and consider whether to make any recommendations to inform cabinet’s consideration of
the master plan.

Recommendation(s)

THAT:

(a) the committee identify any recommendations to be made to cabinet on:

a.
b.
C.

d.

The general ambition and objectives of the plan.

The scope and scale of the various projects.

The mix of projects in terms of location, sector, theme, contribution to the
Herefordshire economy.

The intended future project development route and opportunities for future
projects to be included in the plan.

Alternative options

1 None; the master plan (replacing the economic development strategy) forms part of
the council’s budget and policy framework. The constitution requires that the scrutiny
committee be given the opportunity to consider making recommendations to cabinet
on framework policies.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager on Tel (01432) 260601

41




Reasons for recommendations

2

To inform a future cabinet decision.

Key considerations

Background

3

The current county economic development strategy has been in place since 2011 and
runs until 2016. The 2011-2016 strategy identified a series of aims to boost the
county economy and support business growth, accompanying these aims were a set
of ten projects that provided supporting infrastructure to the business community’s
needs.

The two principle audiences for the current strategy were the local business
community and central government. As potential funders of the infrastructure
projects it was important that the strategy enabled government to clearly see a vision
and strategy for growth within Herefordshire.

In 2016 the political and economic landscape has changed significantly since the
current strategy was drafted. It is recognised that politically and financially
Herefordshire needs to target not only public sector partners but increasingly look to
the private sector for support and finance to develop its key infrastructure
requirements. Developments such as the Old Market and the Enterprise Zone
demonstrate that Hereford can be an attractive private sector investment destination
if the right opportunities are identified and clearly marketed.

As a consequence the county economic development strategy for the next period
needs to reflect this addition to the interested audience. The development of the
economic master plan looks to address this required change and is focused in a
different direction to previous version of the economic development strategy.

The economic master plan is looking to:

a. ldentify priority projects that can improve conditions for future economic
growth and a higher value economy;

b. Guide investment to and within the County, illustrating its potential;

c. Act as a vehicle to raise the profile of the County regionally, nationally and
internationally;

d. Inform our negotiations with government, partner Local Authorities and
crucially the Marches Local Enterprise Partnership;

e. Build upon the statutory policy framework, including the Local Development
Framework; and

Master Plan Purpose and Objectives

8

Growing the Herefordshire economy will provide benefit in the form of maintaining, or
increasing, living standards, help tackle poverty, increasing wages levels and
disposable income, encouraging investment leading to further growth successes. As

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager on Tel (01432) 260601

42



an enabler of growth the aim of the economic master plan is to:

a. Create the right conditions for economic growth and;

b. To move towards a higher value economy.
9 To deliver this vision the master plan will perform a variety of roles and functions. It
will:
a. Focus on a series of interlinked “themes”
b. Contain a series of priority projects.
c. Act as a mechanism for attracting inward investment.
d. Raise the county’s profile and showcase exemplar existing businesses.
e. Deliver greater coordination and focus in our discussions with partners such
as government and the Marches LEP.
Projects

10 A significant proportion of the master plan concentrates on the development of very
important projects. These focus on the delivery of economic growth and build upon
the core strategy and/or a defined evidence base.

11 In the draft version of the master plan (attached at appendix 1 — please note due to
the size of the document it is stored on the internet, a link is provided at the end of
this report) there are twenty six very important projects proposed. These projects can
be split into several sub groups:

a.

b.

C.

d.

A set of projects which demonstrate the council’s investment in economic
infrastructure, these include the Hereford bypass, the Enterprise Zone, and
others.

A set of capital projects focused on Hereford city.

A set of projects focused on the wider Herefordshire and the market towns.
Some of these projects will take place across the county — the business
incubator programme for example, whilst others will be focused on a specific
location — Model Farm enterprise park, Ross on Wye for example.

A set of projects that aim to engender a change of culture or developing a
distinctive identity within the county.

12 A presentation attached at appendix 2 will be given to the committee to accompany
this report and to gain views on:

a.

b.

The general ambition and objectives of the plan.
The scope and scale of the various projects.

The mix of projects in terms of location, sector, theme, contribution to the
Herefordshire economy.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager on Tel (01432) 260601

43



13

14

d. The intended future project development route and opportunities for future
projects to be included in the plan.

These projects are intended to “start the conversation” regarding future economic
growth and vision for the county. A period of engagement with potential partners will
commence in early October with a resulting potential change to the current draft
proposals and projects.

It should also be noted that the master plan is not a statutory document and has no
powers on its own to allocate land for a particular purpose. The definitive intention of
the master plan is to set out, an emerging, vision, illustrate potential and opportunity,
and demonstrate that Herefordshire can deliver economic growth.

Future Development of Projects

15

16

17

18

19

The master plan will not be a static document, it will evolve over time as projects
become implemented and new projects emerge. Developing a pipeline of projects
that can be added to the master plan on a regular basis is a defining criteria of the
plan.

It is imperative that communities and localities have regular opportunity to submit
potential priority project ideas for consideration within the master plan. Equally it is
anticipated that there could be a mechanism within the master plan to record where
communities feel there are potential opportunities for investment in economic growth.

Officers will be developing this process for inclusion within the final draft plan but will
likely involve a set of criteria that projects will need to meet to be considered for
inclusion — scale, contribution to economic growth, conformity with the Core Strategy,
etc. It is proposed that there will be a regular review of new projects so that new and
emerging opportunities can be captured within the master plan.

To ensure genuine involvement with the master plan project it will be of paramount
importance to effectively engage with local communities and groups in the city,
market towns and across Herefordshire. As elected community representatives,
there is a role for councillors in shaping and leading the project development process
and forming meaningful communication linkages between the various communities
and the development of the master plan.

It should be noted that the final economic master plan as a budget and policy
framework item will be adopted by full council. The provisional timetable for this is
currently as follows:

Cabinet 1st December

Full Council 16" December

Community impact

20

The Master Plan includes a suite of very important projects. Each of these projects

will be required to make a contribution towards economic growth and a higher value
economy. At this draft stage the Master Plan contains a suite of projects but this list
has not been finalised so it is impossible to determine the exact community impact.
The final version of the Master Plan will include the final list of very important projects,

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager on Tel (01432) 260601

44



21

22

from this list the broad community impact will be determined.
Within the Master Plan it is proposed to set out some specific targets to demonstrate
contributions to economic growth and to measure success. It is likely that the
Economic master Plan will include targets focused on economic benefit such as, but
not limited to, :

a. Increasing average wages;

b. Providing new Higher Education places;

c. Increasing the number of new business start-ups;

d. Reducing carbon dioxide levels;

e. Increasing GVA to demonstrate improved productivity.
The drafting, and approval, of the Economic Master Plan will help guide council and
private sector investment through the implementation of the identified priority projects,

consequently making a significant contribution to the corporate priority to support the
growth of our economy.

Equality duty

23

24

25

There are no equality or human rights issues arising from the content of this report
and there are no equality or human rights issue in the drafting of an Economic Master
Plan.

However the work contained with the production of the Economic Master Plan may
draw attention to issues within the implementation of the various priority projects that
would have an impact on equalities or human rights.

Should council approval be required for support towards, or involvement with, any of
these priority projects, a decision report will request the appropriate approval and set
out the equality and / or human rights issues.

Financial implications

26

27

The cost of drafting an economic master plan is being met within existing service
budgets and primarily is a call on officer time.

There will be a cost to implementing the Economic Master Plan and for supporting or
developing priority projects. Should council approval be required for support towards,
or involvement with, any of the priority projects, a decision reports will request the
appropriate approval.

Legal implications

28

There are no legal issues arising from the recommendations. The budget and policy
framework rules within the council’s constitution provide that scrutiny have the
opportunity to make recommendations on such items to inform cabinet’s
recommendation to Council. .

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager on Tel (01432) 260601

45



Risk management

29 Should any of the priority projects require council involvement or support there will be
a variety of risks associated with their development and implementation, these risks
will be identified and mitigated within appropriate project management arrangements
put in place for the delivery of successful project proposals.

30 The drafting of an Economic Master Plan provides an opportunity to undertake a
further stage of delivery of the council’s core strategy and to secure investment
towards economic growth within Herefordshire.

Consultees

31 A number of consultation events have taken place with communities across
Herefordshire to gain projects ideas that would significantly contribute towards
economic growth and form a priority project within the Economic Master Plan. These
project ideas will be considered along with ideas taken from a number of other
sources, including General Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Appendices
o Appendix 1 — Draft Economic Master Plan
o Appendix 2 - Master Plan Presentation GOSC Meeting September 2016

Background papers

o None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Nick Webster, Economic Development Manager on Tel (01432) 260601

46



Invest Herefordshire

Herefordshire’s Economic Plan

Council




Contents

Introduction and Purpose 3 A Strong Hereford for a Strong Herefordshire 47
A History of Delivery 4 Hereford River Quarter 28
Challenges and Opportunities 6 Hereford Football Club 50
Our Vision and Objectives Movement and Street Scene 52
— Measuring Success 10 NMITE 54
Master Plan Objectives 12 Berrington Street Regeneration Area 56
The “Plan” 15 The Racecourse 58
The Plan Process 18 Hereford Business Quarter 60
A Great Place for Business 20 Herefordshire — County of Culture 62
Great Place to Learn 22 The Green Corridor 64
Great Market Towns 24 Countywide ambition 66
A Great Place to Live 26 Model Farm Enterprise Park 68
A Great Place to Visit 28 Redevelopment of Leominster Broad 70
A Great Environment 30 Leominster Railway Station Improvements 72
Great movement and accessibility 32 The Herefordshire Food and Rural Business
Expanding Our Vision 34 Centre 74
Investment Opportunities 36 Developing a distinctive identity 76
Creating an Investment Ready Landscape 37 An ongoing programme of engagement with
Skylon Park - these businesses 78
The Hereford Enterprise Zone 38 Inspiring an entrepreneurial generation 80
Superfast Broadband for all 40 Dare to Win 82
City centre living 42 A Pipeline of Projects 84
Hereford Bypass 44 Partnership and Delivery 86
Investing in homes and communities 46

Economic master plan 2016 | 2

48



1. Introduction and Purpose

HM Government is pursuing economic growth with a
renewed drive in a direct response to the recent recession
and general economic downturn. Through agencies such
as LEP's the government is looking to “rebalance” the
economy to reflect the need to draw on private sector
investment and jobs to build a sustainable recovery.

In an ever increasing competitive market place
Herefordshire needs to stand out, to have its own
identity, to be able to influence government and inform
the direction of partners such as the Marches LEP. To do
this we need to be certain of our priorities and direction,
to understand our issues and opportunities, and to be
coordinated and ready to take advantage.

Herefordshire is already rising to the challenge. Recent
public and private sector projects demonstrate the
ambition and confidence which exists in the County, the
Old Market development, Enterprise Zone status, the
roll out of Superfast Broadband, housing development
at Hildersley in Ross, private sector investment from
companies such as Cargill, Tyrrells, Heineken and
Weston’s, the Oval regeneration, all demonstrate a
growing momentum within the County.

However, how can we go above and beyond what

is currently planned, how can we identify new
opportunities, how do we react quickly to investment
proposals, and how can we build a picture that is
coordinated, flexible, stretching but achievable?

To achieve the changes required to make a significant
difference within Herefordshire a new approach is
required where all aspects of the Herefordshire economy
participate and contribute their knowledge and resources.

49

This new approach takes the form of a Herefordshire
Economic Plan

The Economic Plan will be ambitious but deliverable,

it will build on the county’s recent successes without
sacrificing the countys character in delivering new
infrastructure, working in partnership and recognises that
greater focus on targeted, coordinated investment is the
only route to the effective provision of economic change.

The Master Plan will detail clear projects and priorities
that, in combination, will enable the economic growth
required to deliver a resilient county and act as an
attractive investment proposition. We will use the plan
to:

1. Identify priority projects that can improve conditions
for future economic growth and a higher value
economy;

2. Guide investment to and within the County,
illustrating its potential;

3. Act as a vehicle to raise the profile of the County
regionally, nationally and internationally;

4. Inform our negotiations with government, partner
Local Authorities and crucially the Marches Local
Enterprise Partnership;

5. Build upon the statutory policy framework, including
the Local Development Framework; and

In all reality Herefordshire began this process some

time ago and has already reaped tangible benefits. We
are now taking this approach and process to a wider
audience and inviting others to help deliver an intriguing
economic and financial proposition. The opportunities
and challenges are clear, the proposition may be unique
but our track record and desire demonstrates that it is
deliverable.

3 | Economic master plan 2016



2. A History of Delivery

The Master Plan will build upon a proven track

record of success and achievement. Combining
economic development, employment and skills, with
infrastructure, strategic transport and quality of life
we will deliver a proposal that caters for all aspects of
economic growth.

Herefordshire is an entrepreneurial county, there is; a
significant proportion (insert figure) of the population
who are self-employed, disproportionally high levels of
patent registrations, and good business survival rates.
The countys business base is both diverse and healthy.

The core business sectors are manufacturing, defence

and security, food and drink production, and agriculture.

A number of global companies operate alongside
well known British brands; Cadbury, Heineken, Tyrells,
Cargill, Weston's Cider, Kingspan, all of which have
interests in the county.

Much has been achieved in recent years. Hereford in
particular is a vibrant, growing city; with its new £100m
retail and leisure development partnering a successful
Enterprise Zone and emerging proposals for a new
University, the future is very bright and offers firm
foundations upon which to expand even further.

The Council is proactively pursuing the county’s
continuing growth. The recently adopted Core Strategy
will deliver 16,500 new homes, new infrastructure to
reduce congestion and improve access to markets, and
sufficient employment land to meet the needs of a
growing business base.

Economic master plan 2016 | 4

50

The keys to success will be new highway and transport
infrastructure that enables the development of industrial
and housing schemes; a business led skills program

that ensures firms have employees with the necessary
skills, and access for all to superfast broadband to take
advantage of the increasing opportunities offered by the
internet.

The economic game changer will be the creation of
the new NMITE University that offers a new approach
to learning based on real-world problem solving
through the blending of high quality engineering,
design, liberal arts and humanities with communication
and employability. Herefordshire will develop the
opportunity to retain graduates with skills targeted at
the growth sectors of the future.

Ideally situated at the heart of the UK, south west of
Birmingham with the Welsh border to the west and
Worcestershire to the east, Herefordshire represents
a part of the United Kingdom rich in heritage, culture
enterprise, landscapes and wildlife, with significant
tourism potential.

Despite its relatively rural location the county

benefits from a direct high speed rail link to London,
Manchester and Cardiff, in addition to hourly services to
Birmingham. The well placed transport links don't end
there, Birmingham, Bristol and Cardiff airports are all
accessible within an hour and half drive, giving access to
a host of European and further afield destinations.



Successes to date

The Master Plan concept builds on several years of
ambitious growth and economic development planning
led by Herefordshire Council and supported by key
partners, investors and businesses. During the last five
years the county has been successful in:

1. Securing Enterprise Zone status for the largest
business park within the county. Now with 45% of
the available land built upon or sold the Zone has
made a significant start towards creating its target
of over 4,000 jobs.

2. Over x business supported with grants or business
advice.

3. Opening a new £100m retail and leisure expansion
of the city centre. Anchored by a Debenhams and
Waitrose, the British Land funded scheme is fully
let 20 months after opening, has created over 700
jobs, and has been the catalyst behind Hereford
moving 38 places up the national retail ranking list.

4. Securing over £43m from central government
for road infrastructure schemes which will bring
forward several hundred city centre homes, and
form the first section of a Hereford bypass.

5.  Working with BT in delivered superfast Broadband
to 55,000 homes and businesses across the County.
By the end of 2016 90% of homes and businesses
will be able to access fibre enabled Broadband.

6. Facilitating the building x number of new homes
over the past three years.

The council has a proven track record of acting as

an enabler, and has demonstrated its ability to make
conditions ripe for investment. The council and partners
believe in the growth of Herefordshire, for the county
to be truly successful businesses and investors need to
share that belief.

51

The economic plan is the start of our project designed
to show that Herefordshire is open for business. We
want people to be talking about the county, to be
excited about our future and to come and see what we
have to offer. The direction and structure given by the
economic plan will inspire confidence in the business
and investment community to the extent that they see
Herefordshire as a high quality investment location.

Herefordshire is without doubt one of the best places
to live in the country and with all the investment being
made it is becoming the right choice for business too.

5 | Economic master plan 2016



3. Challenges and Opportunities

As with any county or region there are challenges
affecting the economic and social character of
Herefordshire. The Master Plan acknowledges these
challenges and aims to alleviate the impact they have
on our economy and society through a series of projects
that will each address the identified challenges.

Economic master plan 2016 | 6

52

Challenge 1 — Low wage economy

Herefordshire has very low unemployment, x% as of
Jan 2016, finding jobs is not an issue within the county,
however in 2016 Herefordshire finds itself within the
bottom (x%) of local authority areas across Great Britain
in terms of average weekly wage. This is largely a
legacy of an economy built upon agriculture, food and
drink processing, and manufacturing, it impacts on the
resident population’s disposable income, social mobility
and living standards. Our solution to solve these social
and economic issues is to aim to become a higher
value economy with a focus on knowledge intensive
employment and businesses.

Given the low benchmark position there is scope for
significant wage level improvement, even a move up to
the regional average will generate significant benefit

in terms of wage levels and increased disposable
income. Emerging evidence suggests that the low
unemployment rate is beginning to pressurise wage
levels as employers attempt to secure their workforce in
a growing economy.



o S AeREETa

Challenge 2 - Skills and Higher Education

Herefordshire has specific skills challenges, with 10%
of the working age population having no qualifications
(8.6% nationally) and 16 areas in the county are
amongst the 25% most deprived in England for adult
skills. Local engineering and manufacturing companies
are struggling to recruit people with the right skills, and
recruitment is a significant challenge for the health and
care sector.

The evidence is clear that increasing the level of skills in
the workforce is fundamental to sustainable long term
economic growth. As the national economy moves to a
model characterised by high performing and high value
added sectors, this in turn requires more people to be
employed in higher level jobs with the skills to match.

It is therefore vital that we ensure that young people
have the skills that they need to find work and that
people are supported throughout their lives to upskill
and achieve their potential. We need to be empowered
to be responsive to changing and emerging business
and skills needs. We need to be able to shape the skills
system to meet economic and social needs. To be more
effective and efficient we need to integrate provision at
a local level.

53

Large elements of the county are a considerable
distance from the national motorway network, suffer
from unreliable or slow Broadband connectivity, and
patchy mobile phone coverage. In the Digital Age any
under provision of electronic communication can be as
big an inhibitor to growth as the lack of road, rail or
utility infrastructure.

The Council is proposing a significant growth in
housing and employment sites, and whilst infrastructure
capacity is a not a feature unique to Herefordshire it is
recognised that this growth can only be accommodated
if the relating infrastructure is installed. The challenge
requires this infrastructure to be in place in time to
facilitate the growth and to bring confidence to the
market that development can proceed.

The principle infrastructure constraints required to
accommodate the level of proposed growth relate
to the road infrastructure principally in and around
Hereford, although with notable issues to also be
addressed in Leominster, the capacity to treat waste
water and mitigate phosphate discharge, and the
provision of suitable broadband speeds to meet the
needs of businesses and residents.

It is important that the development of an infrastructure
package combines to address the requirements for a
modern economy — ease of movement, readily available
labour supply, availability of employment land, and
access to markets, backed up by an enhanced quality
of life offer incorporating modern retail, sporting and
leisure opportunities.

7 | Economic master plan 2016



Economic master plan 2016 | 8




Challenge 4 - GVA

Gross Value Added (GVA) represents a useful proxy

for productivity. GVA measures the contribution to the

economy of each individual producer, industry or sector
in the United Kingdom and is a headline measure used

to monitor economic performance.

Over the last decade, GVA in Herefordshire increased
by 42.5 per cent; higher than regionally (36.3 per
cent increase) but lower than nationally (43.8 per cent
increase).

When measured per head of population, Herefordshire’s
GVA in 2013 was £17,900, highlighting lower levels of

economic productivity when compared to both regional
(£19,400) and national (£24,000) GVA.

When measuring the contribution to GVA of
different industries within the local economy in 2012,
‘production’ (90 per cent of which is manufacturing)

was the highest locally at 21 per cent. Other high
contributors were ‘public administration, education
and health’ (18 per cent) and ‘distribution, transport,
accommodation and food’ (17 per cent). Agriculture
has the most significantly higher contribution to GVA
locally (8 per cent) than nationally (1 per cent)

Meanwhile, finance and insurance’, ‘business services’,
‘information and communication’ and ‘real estate’ made
a significantly lower contribution locally (20 per cent of
GVA) than both regionally (30 per cent) and nationally
(38 per cent). This knowledge economy, founded on
technological progress, advanced products and highly
skilled workers, has driven economic growth for the
last 40 years. Yet these sectors make a significantly
lower contribution in Herefordshire than the more
traditional, and shrinking, sectors of agriculture, public
administration, and manufacturing.

The Herefordshire economy need re-shaping towards
more knowledge-intensive ways of working — towards
activities which create value from exploiting knowledge
rather than physical assets and manual labour. There
is a need to increase wages by creating knowledge
intensive jobs, supporting knowledge intensive
businesses, improve communications, and by attracting
highly skilled employees by offering — opportunities for
progression, choice and competition for jobs combined
with a high quality of life.

9 | Economic master plan 2016



4. Our Vision
and Objectives —
Measuring Success

There are various compelling reasons why we have
chosen to develop an Economic Master Plan - to
give direction, to build confidence, to attract inward
investment, to present opportunities, but ultimately
it is because we have a vision to create the right
conditions for economic growth and to move
towards a higher value economy.

There is recognition that growing the Herefordshire
economy will provide benefit in the form of maintaining
or increasing living standards, will assist in the tackling
of poverty and increasing wage levels, can encourage
investment leading to a virtuous cycle of further
successes, and lastly growth can assist in the provision
of improved public services. The Master Plan will help
identify those conditions which will deliver economic
growth.

In Herefordshire's case, it is proposed that growth
should be focused on activity that produces a higher
value economy. In an ever increasingly competitive
environment the Herefordshire economy should turn
towards activities which create value from exploiting
knowledge whether in the manufacturing, leisure, or
service sector.

The Master Plan will set out the ambition and conditions
where there will be reward for innovation, incentives

to grow research and development, and the ability to
secure higher wages for increasingly skilled jobs.

Economic master plan 2016 | 10

56




Case study — Madley — BT's UK Satellite Station

First commissioned in 1978, Madley, south east of Hereford, is BT's sole operational UK satellite ground station,
with over 65 antennas ranging in diameter from 90cm to 32m. Via these, Madley provides continuous access to
more than 15 satellites spanning two thirds of the planet.

Madley transmits and receives a range of different services, including International News as it happens, Sporting
Events, Corporate networks, Disaster Relief / Recovery, Internet gateway services, and voice comms. BT control
and monitor point-to-point services, Broadcast distribution and contribution as well as self-contained data
networks for specific customers.

Madley, as home to the BT Design & Delivery Teams, 24x7 Operations Teams, 2nd line support team as well
as other key members of BT's satellite community, is regarded as BT's centre of Satcom excellence. The teams
work together extremely closely, combining to provide exceptional collaboration in order to fully support our
customers and the services provided.

As a site, BT Madley is secure with both resilience and diversity in terms of power systems and terrestrial
backhauling. In addition to satellite services, the site is utilised as a true gateway for global connectivity via links
to BT's cable stations and BT Tower, providing a key link in BT's worldwide fibre networks.

The site continues to be at the forefront of technology and personnel are involved in major BT initiatives.
Madley is core to BT’s long term strategies and business sustainability. As such, the site operations are ready,
willing and able to expand, not just in the areas of Satcom related activities, but also in terms of Data Centre
housing and training schools.

11 | Economic master plan 2016

57



Master Plan Objectives

It is the intended strategy of the Economic Plan to create the right conditions for economic growth and to move
towards a higher value economy, to enable this aim to be achieved the Master Plan will initially focus on delivering to

the following set of Objectives:

Business

Learn

Live

Movement and
accessibility

Visit
Market
Towns

Environment

Economic master plan 2016 | 12

Headline Objective

Create the conditions to encourage: new business start-ups, an increase in productivity
and GVA, higher value employment and greater innovation.

To increase the range of HE provision and improve the balance between business
demand and local supply for skills and qualifications.

To offer a broader range of homes and jobs combined with a greater quality of life.
To improve the connectivity of people and business to jobs and markets.
To develop a broader range of visitor and leisure attractions and increase the length

of visitor stay and amount of spend.

Enable Market Towns to maximise their role in building thriving, distinctive, service
centres supporting their surrounding hinterland and communities.

Improve competitiveness and growth through energy and resource efficiency and maintain

and, where possible, enhance the ecological services from which its people benefit ie
Herefordshire’s natural capital

58



* Increase GVA to match the national average, an extra £124m per annum.
e Create X new businesses by 2031.
e Create X new jobs by 2031.

¢ Provide 1,500 HE student places in county by 2025.
e Increased take up of apprenticeships.
¢ Reduction in number of people with no skills to x%.

e Construct 16,500 new houses including 4,800 affordable homes.
* Increase average wages to match the West Midlands average, an extra £170m per annum countywide.

¢ 100% of premises having superfast broadband, an additional x properties.
¢ Reduction in through Hereford traffic average journey times (A49 to A49) by X minutes.

* Increase the total visitor spend to £X per annum.
e Increase the total number of annual visits by 10% to over 525, 000.

¢ Reduce shop vacancy rates to X% in each market town by 2020.
¢ Develop a distinctive visitor offer in each of the five market towns.

¢ Carbon dioxide reduction of 179,000 tonnes by 2021 a saving of £41m.

e Reduction in the phosphate levels in the river wye to 0.05mg/I.

e Create at least three large scale landscape projects that boost the county’s ecological resilience, attracts
visitors, and improve rural livelihoods by 2028

13 | Economic master plan 2016

S



These Obijectives will allow us to be strategic in our
approach to the growth of the county. By focusing on
these objectives the Plan will coordinate a number of
individually operated projects into one strategic package
of growth, which picks up on the interrelations between
the various projects and packages it as a holistic growth
strategy.

By deliberately focusing on the identification of
projects, the coordination of messages to a number of
difference audiences, the influencing of partners and
the measurement of success, these Objectives are all
requirements of a comprehensive strategic approach to
the growth agenda within Herefordshire.

Taken together the Objectives provide a set of guiding
principles that will influence the development of the
Plan and provide a rational for the identification of key
Projects and Targets which make up the specifics of the
Plan.

The implementation of the Objectives will generate

a series of intended positive strategic economic and
social consequences such as increased wages, improved
communication between partners, secured investment,
and greater engagement with communities across
Herefordshire. It is recognised that projects cannot
operate in isolation and the focus on these Objectives
will provide a framework where projects can interact
and contribute towards an overall strategic goal.

Economic master plan 2016 | 14

60

Targets

To measure progress and demonstrate the benefit of the
Master Plan approach it is important to identify specific
Targets which can operate alongside the more strategic
Plan Objectives. This will help provide focus for the
delivery of the Master Plan and once priority projects
have been identified a set of specific Targets will be
generated.

The exact composition of these Targets will be
determined through the development of a set of Very
Important Projects (VIP’s), projects that are crucial to the
development of Herefordshire. However each particular
theme within the Plan currently sets out a series of
Targets that will be used as the basis for discussion.



5. The "Plan”

Any successful economy is an amalgamation of sectors,
specialisms, and niches, these combine to form an
overall picture which gives diversity and resilience. The
Master Plan will take a similar approach. We believe
that for the Herefordshire economy to be successful
the stated Objectives of the Plan need to be focused
through a number of Key Themes.

All of these Themes could be said to make a significant
contribution to the success of the Herefordshire
economy and combined would represent a
comprehensive picture of activity that shapes and
influences its future direction.

The Master Plan has an initial focus on the following
Themes:

2 A Great Place to Learn Establishing a high quality learning environment.
3 Great Market Towns Generating opportunity across the county.
4 A Great Place to Visit Creating a high quality destination for tourists and locals alike.

5 A Great Place to Live Building inclusive, diverse communities exploring innovative new
development models and housing design.

6 A Great Environment Recognising and protecting the contribution made by the natural
environment.

7 Great movement and accessibility Addressing the transport and communication challenges of
accommodating growth.

15 | Economic master plan 2016

61



Breaking the Master Plan down into these Themes
allows for focus of investment and specialisation with
differing partners, additionally it demonstrates the
contribution towards growth that can be delivered by a
variety of sections of the economy.

Within each Theme there are one or two key projects
identified. These Very Important Projects, or VIP's, will
form the backbone of the Master Plan and their delivery
will be critical to the achievement of the Plan’s overall
Vision and Objectives.

These VIP's are of a scale, impact or importance that
they will form the priorities for future investment,
whether from the Council’s capital programme, the LEP
or Government’s resources, or utilising external private
investment.

The Plan should be viewed as a living document. The
content is not static but rather will evolve over time,

as VIP's are implemented the next project should be
ready to build on the previous investment. Engagement
with the Plan is needed from partners and investors

to ensure that a pipeline of potential projects is built.
This approach will ensure that suitable projects that
emerge across the county can easily be “plugged into”
the Plan, this will enable swift reactions to changes in
demand, market conditions or funding or investment
opportunities.

Whilst the projects and VIP's will provide the strategic
priorities for investment and delivery, each Theme will
also need to provide or agree a set of specific Targets.
These Targets will provide a series of success indicators,
enable monitoring of the Plan’s impact, and enable each
project to demonstrate the contribution it brings to the
overall Master Plan delivery.

Economic master plan 2016 | 16



The Plan Process

Vision

Create the right conditions for economic growth
and to move towards a higher value economy

\/
\/

Headline
Objectives
Very
Important
Projects

Delivery,
monitoring
and impact
evaluation

17 | Economic master plan 2016

63



A Great Place for Business

The aim is to transform Herefordshire into a high
value, knowledge economy, with a modern and diverse
commercial property stock and to be at the forefront
of innovation and the development of new sustainable
industries.

Whilst the city in particular has enjoyed strong
commercial development over the last 2 to 3 years
principally as a result of the Enterprise zone status
awarded to Rotherwas, additional major new and
upgraded employment sites at Moreton, Three Elms
and in the key market towns will help build the future
economy of the county.

A supportive business landscape will be developed
where businesses have access to a range of support
from access to finance, growth and resilience planning,
business accommodation, skills, and regulatory advice.

Capitalising on Herefordshire's entrepreneurial culture
and high numbers of self-employed and SME’s a

series of business incubation centres will be created
across the county. Aimed at supporting start up and
growing businesses the centres will provide a focus for
support to the key local sectors of defence, advanced
manufacturing, and food and drink production.

Aiming to add value and increase productivity the
centres will provide an opportunity for collaboration
between businesses and HE or FE institutions helping
bridge the skills gap and creating work ready
employees.

Economic master plan 2016 | 18

64

Regular one to one dialogue will be held with all
significant employers in the county to mitigate against
economic shocks and maximise the investment
opportunities to Herefordshire delivered by such large
businesses.

To capitalise on an increasing catchment area, extending
into south and central wales, south Shropshire

and the Forest of Dean new office developments

will be encouraged within Hereford city centre to
accommodate a growing commercial services sector.

An engagement programme with schools will be critical
to the development of future entrepreneurs. Across the
county school children will be encouraged to expand
their business awareness and skills with the aim of
creating the next generation of business owners and
start-ups.

Alongside a focused effort to attract inward investment
there is likely to be continued growth in local
companies, some of which will look to upgrade their
current space and expand and it is important their
demands for modern accessible office space are met.



e T - — i

i '. '
- ‘ . —— . B
¥ -4 e
Projects
e The business projects include:
1. Development of a new Hereford Central Business District as a sub-regional office centre with linkages to “;

the historic city and attractive pedestrian friendly routes to the station and to the new university and retail
development at the Old Market;

2. Continued commitment to the build out of the Hereford Enterprise Zone and redevelopment of the existing
Rotherwas industrial estate.

3. Encouraging delivery of existing major employment allocations at Three Elms, Moreton on Lugg, and the
market towns;

4. Development of a suite managed workspace or ‘Business Centres’ across the county to encourage small,
creative and innovative businesses including the construction of an innovation Centre at the Enterprise Zone
developing the relationship between the NMITE university and local companies,

5. Developing an entrepreneurial culture among school children to create a genuine future career option of
starting a business.

19 | Economic master plan 2016




I A Great Place to Learn

Herefordshire has an enviable reputation for its
educational establishments, with schools and colleges
that compare favourably with the best institutions
across the UK, Hereford Sixth Form was named by the
Times Education Supplement (TES) as the best “Sixth
Form College of the Year” in its further education
awards of 2016.

The master plan will aim to support the continuing high
standards delivered by the counties existing educational
establishments and identify areas where provision could
be enhanced, specifically it is acknowledged that there
is no dedicated higher education facility within the
county currently.

Through the period of the master plan, Herefordshire
will see a significant growth in its higher education
provision. The creation of the NMITE, new University
project, will draw up to 5,000 students into the

city. The curriculum will be targeted at the needs of
engineering and technology employers to produce
employment-ready, productive, industry relevant,
innovative, economically and financially literate
graduates who will be able communicators and project
managers.

With a new approach to learning — based on real-
world problem solving and the blending of high quality
engineering and design with communication and
employability skills targeted at the growth sectors of
the future, the NMITE project is projecting a student
population of 5,000 by 2031.

Economic master plan 2016 | 20

66

NMITE are committed to the construction of a state of
the art 21st century teaching and innovation campus in
the centre of Hereford, developed on the latest ‘agile’
principles involving the construction/or refurbishment of
teaching and administrative facilities. Linked to the city
centre facilities will be laboratories and workshops and
the NMITE Application & Development centre on the
Enterprise Zone.

Higher Education provision will also be expanded by
other institutions. The Hereford College of Arts will be
supported to develop and expand their range of course
and the quality of dedicated facilities for their students,
centred on new student accommodation situated
conveniently within the city centre.

Investment in the Hereford and Ludlow College Holme
Lacy campus will continue with an expanded range of
facilities, courses, and outside events. The campus and
college farm will host a variety of land based and rural
craft events and will explore the potential for further
development to cater for the growing outdoor lifestyle
market.

Beyond higher and further education, schools at all
levels will have an increased interaction with the local
business community, both to ensure the development of
school leavers with the required skills for the workplace
but also to promote and foster entrepreneurship within
the student population, leading to the next generation
of local entrepreneurs and businesses.



Projects
Implementation of the New Model in Technology and Engineering University, with associated teaching and
administration space, student accommodation, and linked laboratory and workshop space.
New build student accommodation and associated facilities for students attending the Hereford College
of Arts.

Investment in the Holme Lacy campus and development of the campus and college farm for an expanded
range of courses and outside, but linked, activities.

Increased linkages between the county’s schools and the local business base, expansion of entrepreneurship
based programmes such as Young Enterprise.

21 | Economic master plan 2016

67



I Great Market Towns

The various market towns offer diversity, distinctiveness,
individuality and each has a unique shopping experience
with minimal multiples and a predominance of local
independent traders. Some market towns add to this
offer with a particular localised specialism developing
similar propositions in the other market towns will add
to their viability and individuality.

During the master plan period each market town will
build its own distinct identity and be able to define a
key target audience and offer, this will build on existing
niches that each market town already offers: Leominster
and antiques, Ledbury and poetry, Ross and tourism,
Bromyard and festivals, and Kington and walking.

Hereford city has successfully implemented a trader
promoted Business Improvement District which covers
circa 500 businesses within the city with its own board
tasked with delivery of a definitive business plan. The
BID has given traders a voice, and finance, with which
to implement a package of projects designed to increase
footfall and turnover.

Each of the market towns could explore following this
initiative, albeit on a commensurate scale, with their
own business plan and accompanying finance. This
would build on local distinctiveness and improve trader
engagement, whilst also leading to a better customer
experience and increased vibrancy across the market
towns network.

Economic master plan 2016 | 22

68

Encouragement will be given to the general
improvement of the retail offer and environment within
the Market Towns specifically to exploring planning
policies which provide flexibility within the retail area
and the business support available to build a distinctive
and attractive retailing experience.

Minimisation of vacant property will also be
encouraged, alongside other initiatives that benefit

the vitality and vibrancy of the town centres, whether
through increased town centre living, activities to bring
in more retails and services, or exploration of other uses.

Herefordshire and its market towns will become

both local service and retail centres serving their local
community but also attractive, vibrant, destinations

that offer year round activities for the visitor and tourist
alike, encouraging multiple trips and favourable reviews,
leading to long term stability for these vital community
assets.



Projects

1.

2.

Review retail hierarchy’s and, where appropriate, suggest alternatives to existing retail provision across the
city to ensure an appropriate and flexible retail offer;

Develop a series of locations where a combination of small scale production and niche retailing can flourish
for example in craft and arts or food and drink based industries.

. The exploration of Business Improvement Districts in each of the market towns to give each a definitive

business plan and locally allocated finance to deliver a range of improvements and programme of activity.

. Grow the emerging local food and drink and hospitality sector which is typified by the growing number of

craft pubs, breweries, pop-up food outlets and speciality offers, to attract a wider and more diverse
customer base.

Develop specialised retail propositions within each of the market towns based on local niche markets and
linking to leisure and tourism offers.

Develop key housing and employment allocations to facilitate growth across the market towns.

74




I A Great Place to Live

The aim is for Herefordshire to be known by its
residents, and be seen by its visitors, as a great place
to live with a wide variety of sustainable, new and
improved homes attractive to a diverse range of people
including families, with high quality supporting social
infrastructure.

The county already benefits from an attractive and
distinctive environment with high quality buildings,
streets and spaces, with a strong underlying landscape
structure enhancing the special character of the county.
This structure is to be supported by protecting and
enhancing landscape designations, improving green
infrastructure, improving the design and construction
quality of developments, and by involving local
communities in decision making process through
mechanisms such as neighbourhood planning.

Hereford city centre is the most sustainable location
within the county given its proximity to public transport
nodes and retail, leisure and employment opportunities.
The Urban Village project takes advantage of this
location and will involve the construction of a genuine
city centre community bringing activity during the day,
additional trade to the city centre, whilst offering more
sustainable lifestyle choices for residents.

New residential opportunities will also be created
through the NMITE University with a requirement for

an appropriate provision of student accommodation,
this will be coupled with a series of starter home
developments designed to cater for young professionals
and those starting on the property ladder. The net
effect will be to create genuine city centre living, with a
sense of community and place.

Economic master plan 2016 | 24

70



Projects

The emerging living projects include:
. Continuing to develop the city centre as an attractive place to live specifically the urban village project;

Providing opportunities for a variety of new homes including apartments, family housing, prestigious and
affordable housing;

. Exploring the regeneration and renewal of the existing housing stock;

. The support to Parish councils looking to develop and implement neighbourhood plans;

. The EMP will consider a VIP based on the development of a stronger housing offer for all key sectors;
Encourage a range of outdoor activities that attract visitors and serve local communities.

25 | Economic master plan 2016




I A Great Place to Visit

The plan will unlock the potential of the county as a
unique, special place to visit at a regional and national
level, offering a unique blend of heritage, architecture,
countryside walks, rural communities to explore,
modern leisure attractions, shopping, new and inspiring
cultural and arts developments.

Herefordshire is a definitively rural county. Without

the large scale visitor numbers drawn to better known
locations such as the Lakes, Peak District, or South West,
the county still has a host of attractions and events to
tempt visitors. The offer is one that is rooted in both
being local and distinctive, there is a preponderance of
niche festivals, quirky accommodation, and fantastic
food and drink.

Potential exists to utilise the natural offer to enhance
the visitor experience with specific emphasis being
placed on the outdoor pursuits market. This will focus
not only on the year round offer gained from walking
and nature based tourism, cycling and water sports but
also on developing a series of regular events such as
long distance assault courses, orienteering, open water
swimming and mountain biking. It will also be achieved
by enhancing high quality landscapes to increase their
attractiveness to walkers and nature lovers.

Economic master plan 2016 | 26

72

The traditional accommodation offered throughout the
county will be supplemented through the provision of
a new, quality, hotel offering high end accommodation
and the potential for business conferencing. At the
other end of the size scale encouragement will be
given to the provision of a wide range of small scale
and unigue accommodation experiences whether yurts,
Hobbit Holes, bivouacs, or high end camping.

To ensure a diverse and unique visitor experience this
accommodation will be offered alongside market
towns each with a specific specialisation — antiques in
Leominster, walking in Kington, Poetry in Ledbury for
example — and a range of small scale, distinctive events
and festivals celebrating the best that the county has to
offer.

As expected Hereford has the most diverse visitor offer
and acts as a compelling base from which to explore
the rest of the county, in addition to traditional features
such as the Cathedral, Courtyard Theatre and Cider
Museum it has a modern offer through a multi-screen
cinema, vast range of restaurants and bars, and other
leisure activities.

The city could benefit from more diversity to its offer
and there is opportunity to consider developing the role
of the river in the visitor economy.



Projects
The emerging visit projects include:

1.

2

Enhance the retail offer of Hereford city centre through an expanded independent and niche offer
establishing a more rounded and diverse retail and leisure environment;

Developing a “river quarter” within Hereford to open up access to river and provide a focal point for the
county's outdoor pursuits offer;

Assisting local communities and organisations to create a series of distinctive and sustainable festivals and
events to be run throughout the year;

Working with landowners and accommodation providers to significantly diversify the accommodation
provision and better coordinate the promotion of the sector;

Develop a calendar of outdoor pursuits based around a number of sporting and outdoor activities;
Continue to support the localised food and drink sector in particular in the enhancement of their visitor
offer and experience and in the development of their product range and production facilities.




1 A Great Environment

The quality of the Herefordshire environment and
landscape is perhaps the county’s single biggest asset.
It serves to attract young and old alike, for a variety of

purposes and reasons, and provides a fantastic backdrop

whether people live, work or visit the county.

Rather than act as an inhibitor to growth the
Herefordshire environment and landscape can help
facilitate it, both directly and indirectly.

Developing a series of projects designed to enhance
the living and natural landscape has the potential to
both attract visitors to specific sites where conservation
or ecology enhancement projects are in place, and for
activities that follow particular routes or trails and cover
a larger element of the county.

The landscape design will attract visitors, businesses
and residents alike, furthering the aim of making the
county into a great place to live whilst maintaining and
enhancing its natural capital by increasing its resilience
to flooding, climate change, loss of pollinators that
service agriculture, etc.

The Rivers Wye and Lugg are both Special Areas

of Conservation (SAC), designated under the EU
Habitats Directive, however the Lugg is failing the
phosphate quality standard and the upper Wye is

in danger of failing. Without the implementation of
the nutrient management plan to address this, this
poses a risk to future development in the county.
Implementation of the nutrient management plan will

Economic master plan 2016 | 28

74

lead to Improvements to the water quality across the
county through appropriate mitigation, investment
and sensitive development, which in turn will enable a
number of strategic sites to reach their full potential.
Equally the implementation of a number of landscape
and habitat projects may assist in managing strategic
flood risk with the consequential beneficial impacts on
the county’s infrastructure, communities, and business
base.

There are a number of opportunities to capitalise

on the expertise within the county that exists in the
environmental technologies sector with Herefordshire
having seen substantially higher local deployment

of solar pv and seen the development of numerous
community owned projects.

Elements of the city centre and in particular the

Urban Village will be served by a new district heating
system that reduces reliance on fossil fuels and offers
sustainable heating costs for this new and sustainable
community. Villages and communities elsewhere across
the county will be encouraged to explore measures that
could lead to energy self-sustainability or where local
energy schemes could be created that allow revenues to
be shared among local communities.



L JE————

e ~ e

Projects

. Delivering the nutrient management plan to reduced phosphate levels to improve water quality and
unlocking future development land.

. Implementing a range of localised energy schemes that contribute to energy self-sufficiency delivering
secure, low carbon and affordable energy.

. Delivery of the Lugg Living Landscape project restoring habitats and ecology across the river valley with
accompanying access improvements and associated visitor and tourism facilities.

. Implementing with partners a range of other Living Landscape projects across the county in appropriate
locations.

. Developing Herefordshire's strong environmental technologies sector and providing support to the refit of
energy efficient measures within business, community and public buildings.

. Constructing a district energy scheme for the Herefordshire Urban Village development.

29 | Economic master plan 2016




I Great movement and accessibility

We aim to unlock the potential of the county as a
great place to do business, to live in and to visit, with
Hereford at its centre as a prosperous, healthy and
accessible city. Developing the economy — through
delivering the houses, education, training and jobs
—requires an integrated and resilient network (both
physical infrastructure and services) that is fit for
purpose. Importantly:

¢ People who choose to live in, visit and work in

Herefordshire need to have confidence that there

are transport options that meet their lifestyle
needs
e Business enterprises require a transport network

that:

o Quickly and reliably connects the major
employment centres with markets

o Enables businesses to collaborate and
develop supply chain and customer
relationships

o Enables people to access a wide selection of
job/training/education opportunities

o s resilient to disruption by providing a
genuine choice of routes and modes.

Herefordshire needs to offer the right conditions for
high levels of employment and quality of life to attract
and retain workers and their families. To achieve

this we will deliver a transport system that improves
our towns’ and city’s environment and economic
performance by achieving freedom of movement for all
modes of travel particularly to the retail core, University,
Enterprise Zone and new housing developments.

Economic master plan 2016 | 30

76

Central to this vision is the delivery of a Hereford bypass
to take traffic out of the city centre, particularly heavy
trucks. It cannot be understated that the Hereford
bypass is critical to the growth of the city and the
enablement of a wider package of measures that

will aim to reduce the numbers of short distance car
journeys made in the city — each day there are some
30,000 car journeys in the peak periods that never leave
the city.

The presence of these vehicles deters many potential
active mode users from choosing to walk or cycle; and
its increasing levels of walking and cycling that will
make Hereford the clean, prosperous and healthy city
we want. Being able not just to walk and cycle to work,
school, college or the shops but also to make leisure
trips around our city is fundamental to creating the
conditions to attract and retain the workers and visitors
we need to take our economy forward.

The implementation of the bypass will enable
movement options within Hereford city centre itself,
with expansion of the current traffic measures and road
treatment in place along Newmarket Street a possibility
along sections of the A49. Severance between the
residential areas to the west of the city centre could

be reduced with this treatment and complementary
measures such as improved crossing points and the
removal of underpasses.



Street scape and active travel improvements in the city
centre will be supported by the development of new,
multi storey car parks that are situated on the major
arterial routes into the city and which look to capture
commuter and visitor traffic before it reaches the city
centre. Having fewer, but larger, car parking sites will
allow for improved signage and accessibility making it
easier for visitors to navigate around the city centre.

Rural Herefordshire is characterised by high quality
landscapes and townscapes, a large agricultural
presence, a very low population density and an
extensive road network. For most people the car or van
is and will remain the main mode of transport. With
increasing numbers of vehicles passing through our rural
villages and hamlets partnerships will develop with local
stakeholders to reduce the impacts of those vehicles
with ‘village gateways’ and similar projects. The council
will continue to work with the health sector, schools
and bus and taxi operators to make the best use of their
services to provide transport for those without access to
acar.

The plans for road maintenance are no less ambitious to
ensure our transport system is maintained in a condition
that offers the safest travelling conditions we can deliver
for the funding available.

77

Projects

Hereford bypass transport package
including bus and active mode
measures and behavioural change
projects

South Wye Transport Package
including southern link and active
mode measures

Hereford City centre transport
package including City Centre

link road and public realm, bus
and active mode measures on
Commercial Street, Blueschool
Street and Newmarket street and
a transport hub at the rail station.
Hightown refurbishment and on —
street parking management

St Owens street contraflow cycle
way.

£100m+ on road maintenance
over the next 10 years.
Development of new multi storey
car parking to serve the city centre
Continue the shared surface
treatment from New Market Street
along the A49 through the city.

31 | Economic master plan 2016



6. Expanding Our Vision

Investing in a Difference

This Economic Plan describes a county full of
opportunity and investment potential. It is a Plan that
will secure a first class business environment supported
by state of the art infrastructure, deliver a complete
package of work, leisure, and home life balance, attract
inward investment and build on firm foundations.

As an Economic Plan it is a collaboration of ideas,
projects, and opportunities that can generate private
sector investment and inspire confidence within the
business community, in recognition that Herefordshire is
poised to become a sought after investment location.

The Economic Plan builds upon the councils Core
Strategy and that documents targets of building 16,500
new houses by 2031. Insert some job and growth
predictions.

Herefordshire should be recognised for its locational
advantages. It is strategically placed to serve the urban
centres of both Greater Birmingham and South Wales
whilst offering opportunity to extend its catchment area
across the whole of mid wales.

People power, public sector ambition and private sector
confidence are uniting to create an unrivalled economic
success story, attracting and keeping multinational
companies, the most exciting entrepreneurs and the
cream of the graduate crop here.

Economic master plan 2016 | 32

78

Herefordshire may be small in population but is big

on ideas, opportunity and ambition. This series of
projects presents x VIP's from across the county, worth
a combined £x and have the potential to help create X
jobs.

The next 15 years will transform a rurally based
economy into a modern, diverse, well connected
business location, offering a first class supportive
framework for undertaking business, combined with an
aspiring entrepreneurial population. The commercial
opportunities available to businesses and investors alike
will be unrivalled in the UK.

The council recognise that investment is built on
confidence and investing in the Economic Plan is the
best method to provide that confidence. The council is
investing in a range of capital projects that will provide
a great environment whether for business, leisure, or
living, forming a comprehensive programme of public
sector investment with the aim of enabling growth and
building Herefordshire as a significant business location.

Integral to the delivery of the Plan, together these
projects form the infrastructure that will enable the
delivery of the wider investment opportunities and VIP's.



33 | Economic master plan 2016




/. Investment Opportunities

Delivering the 2020 vision and beyond Developing a distinctive identity
1. The Enterprise Zone 23. A supportive business landscape

2. Delivering Superfast Broadband 24. Inspiring an entrepreneurial generation
3. Investing in a vibrant City Centre 25. Dare to win — an outdoor lifestyle

4.  Hereford Bypass

A Strong Hereford for a Strong
Herefordshire

6.  River Quarter

7. Berrington Street regeneration area

8.  Edgar Street regeneration area (Football Ground)
9.  Movement, car parking and street scene

10. NMITE

11. The Racecourse

12. Hereford Business Quarter

13. City of Culture

14. The Lower Lugg leisure landscape

15. Hereford Housing sites

Countywide Ambition

16. Business Incubation programme

17. Model Farm enterprise park

18. Leominster Railway Station

19. A Market Towns Support Package

20. Ross on Wye Rowing Club

21. Rural employment and service centres
22. Market Towns housing sites

Economic master plan 2016 | 34

80



Creating an Investment Ready Landscape

PIC to
follow

81



Skylon Park -

The Hereford Enterprise Zone

Our vision for Skylon Park is to create high quality
business space and a vibrant, dynamic business
community in an attractive historic setting. A positive
market perspective of Skylon Park as a place to invest,
develop and work is heavily influenced by the design
and planning of the park both in the attractiveness of
the buildings and the high quality, well maintained soft
landscape.

The Zone will attract investment from established
companies overseas, across Britain and locally, as well as
encouraging new and start-up companies, by offering
them a simplified approach to planning, business

rate discount and superfast and ultrafast broadband
connectivity.

Economic master plan 2016 | 36

At Skylon Park we have land available to buy for
immediate development, and also small units available
to rent. The council has invested over £20m in

recent years providing new access roads, remediating
brownfield sites, and bringing all the necessary services
to the plots. 9 acres have already been sold and

new facilities are either already occupied or under
development, a further 38 acres of land is available to
buy for immediate development.

Initial estimates suggest that around 110 new
businesses could be accommodated at the Zone, leading
to the creation of around 4200 new jobs by 2022.
These projected jobs would be delivered alongside more
than 134,000 sg metres of new work space.

Quick Facts Hereford Enterprise Zone
Sponsor Herefordshire Council

Goodwin Trust
Scale (£) £100m
Type Commercial property development
Location Hereford Enterprise Zone,

Rotherwas, Hereford
Investment Type  Development Finance
Co Investment

Programme Ongoing up to 2037







Supertfast Broadband for all

Fastershire is a partnership between Gloucestershire

County Council and Herefordshire Council to bring Quick Facts

faster broadband to the two counties, with funding Sponsor

from central government’s Broadband Delivery UK

matched by the local authorities. Scale (f)
Type

* Phase 1 of the project, in partnership with BT,
will see around 90% of Gloucestershire and Location
Herefordshire having access to fibre broadband,

. o : , Investment Type
with all premises in the project area being able to
access a minimum of 2Mbyps.
¢ Phase 2 of the project will extend fibre coverage
Programme

further across the county. The Cotswolds is the first
area to move into phase 2, with a contract awarded
to Gigaclear which will make ultrafast speeds
available to over 6,500 of the most difficult to reach
rural homes and businesses.

The ultimate aim is that by 2018 there will be access to
fast broadband for all who need it. More information
on the rollout can be found in our broadband strategy,
please click here.

Fastershire is not just about technology. The project
also includes social and digital inclusion activities, and
an extensive ‘Business Support’ programme, designed
to help small and medium size businesses get the most
from fibre broadband and be more competitive. In fact,
it is expected that Fastershire will help to boost the local
economy by £420m over the next ten years.

Fastershire will revolutionise the way that people of all
ages across Herefordshire and Gloucestershire work,
learn and play, and will benefit generations to come.

Economic master plan 2016 | 38

84

Herefordshire Council

Communications infrastructure
investment

Herefordshire

Herefordshire Council capital
programme and Central
Government Funding

2016 -



39 | Economic master plan 2016




City centre living

The recent development of the Old Market leisure
complex has enabled land in the city centre to be
developed as an ‘urban village,’.

This urban village will help address the county’s housing
needs and help make Herefordshire a more attractive
place to live, work and visit. To allow for this much-needed
housing, a ‘City Link Road' is required so that developers
and residents can access the site. Around a third of the
development will be affordable housing to help attract
younger people to Hereford city. The space will also allow
for a proposed new Emergency Services Headquarters.

The city link road will help channel traffic out of

the centre of Hereford and make it easier and more
pleasurable to walk around Hereford city. It will also
make it easier to access by foot the new transport hub -
a combined train and bus station.

The road will be built as part of the £16m ‘Hereford
city centre transport package’ with funding being
negotiated with the Local Enterprise Partnership.

The High Town scheme is part of an emerging master-
plan for Hereford city. The refurbishment scheme will
Create an attractive vibrant city centre to help support
existing businesses and create new opportunities to
encourage more visitors and retailers to the city centre.
It will create an excellent space for pedestrians and
cyclists and will ensure a clean, modern and clutter free
city centre.

The scheme will support economic growth of the city
centre by providing a more spacious and pleasurable
environment and it will also address maintenance issues
in the High Town area.

Economic master plan 2016 | 40

86

The refurbished city centre will contribute to providing
an attractive connection from the Old Market
development into the historic city centre allowing it to
look like one city centre.

The scheme has been developed in accordance with
best practice and follows recommendations made in the
Hereford Streetscape Strategy. The refurbished part of
Widemarsh Street has been used as a benchmark due to
the high quality design it has provided making it a lively
and vibrant street.

The Old Market development has improved the leisure
and shopping experience in Hereford and has brought
more people to Hereford city since it opened in May
2014. The refurbishment of Widemarsh Street in

2010 created a popular and attractive link between

the old and new parts of the city and the High Town
refurbishment will extend this area. The revamped
Butter Market will provide a diverse space with a variety
of businesses alongside retailers.

Arriving in Hereford by bus or train, you are likely

to walk from the station along Blueschool Street,
Commercial Road and Newmarket Street. The
refurbishment of these areas will make the walk or cycle
into Hereford city centre more pleasurable, helping
people lead healthier and more active lives. It will also
be easier for visitors and residents to use buses and
trains at a new ‘transport hub.’



Quick Facts

Sponsor

Scale (f)

Type

Location
Investment Type
Programme

Hereford City Centre Improvements

Herefordshire Council

£1.6m in 2016/2017 up to £6m over a number of financial years (subject to funding and priorities)

Regeneration

Hereford City Centre

Local Transport Plan Capital programme
2016-2020 (?)

ﬁf |

L

87

41 | Economic master plan 2016



Hereford Bypass

The forecast growth in Hereford requires an appropriate
investment to increase the city’s transport capacity, the
proposed solution comprises a package containing the
Hereford Bypass and active travel measures (ATMs).

Once constructed the bypass, along with the

Southern Link Road, will create a full north/south
circumnavigation of Hereford from the A49 back to the
A49. In addition to addressing existing and historically
high levels of delay, journey time unreliability, poor
connectivity and poor economic performance, the
Bypass will also provide an alternative route for the A49
trunk road around Hereford and reinforce its importance
as a strategic route — via the A465 - between South
Wales and the Midlands. It will support the delivery

of 6500 houses and 6059 jobs, a new University and
expansion of the Hereford Enterprise Zone.

The Bypass will be complemented by and enable a
range of public realm improvement schemes and Active
Travel Measures (ATMs) - which will increase levels of
walking, cycling and bus use in the city, particularly for
short distance ‘intra-city’ journeys. These schemes are
likely to include enhanced public realm schemes such
as on-road cycle schemes, shared space schemes and
better bus stops and information on the other main
radial routes. Without the Bypass many of the ATMs
would be undeliverable given their impact on traffic
capacity.

Collectively the ATMs will establish a transport
environment where active mode travel becomes the
default mode for short distance intra-city journeys
toward the end of the Master Plan period.

Economic master plan 2016 | 42

As a significant piece of transport infrastructure the
Hereford bypass is linked to the delivery of social
progress (by supporting housing needs), economic
prosperity (by supporting new jobs, area regeneration,
and business growth), and environmental quality
(lessening the harmful impacts of traffic growth,
providing an alternative route for the movement of
Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs), and freeing up space for
pedestrians and cyclists).

Hereford has also been identified as part of an ‘intensive
growth corridor’ linking Birmingham with Worcester,
Hereford, and South Wales. Significant investment

has already being made by the Welsh Government in
delivering the Heads of the Valley A465 dualling project.
Herefordshire Council, as part of the Midlands Connect
partnership across the Midlands, is highlighting the
constraints on economic growth of slow connectivity on
the rail network and slow journeys on the road network,
and making the case for investment in infrastructure on
the basis of wider economic benefits to the Midlands
regions.

In addition to the benefits associated with economic
and housing growth, the scheme will enable a more
reliable and safer route for traffic currently using the
A49 through Hereford and the wider region. It will:

¢ Significantly improve currently extended and
unreliable journey times for traffic on the A49 trunk
road through Hereford.

e Replace a section of the A49 which has a poor safety
record with a route built to current design standards
and so reduce accident costs to Highways England.

¢ Provide enhanced network resilience - one main river
crossing carrying 45,000 vehicles per day currently
leads to low network resilience with the result that
extensive queues develop following an incident
anywhere on the strategic network.



Quick Facts Hereford Bypass

Sponsor Herefordshire Council / Marches LEP

Scale (f) £156m

Type Transport / Regeneration

Location Hereford

Investment Type ~ Growth Fund / Local Transport Plan Capital Programme / Other
Programme 2016- 2027

43 | Economic master plan 2016

89



Hereford River Quarter

Overview

Hereford is built on the banks of one of the UK's great
rivers, the Wye has always had a reputation for great
fishing and is increasingly becoming known as the
premier destination for canoeing and other water related
activity. The natural advantage provided by the Wye is
not currently capitalised upon, with access to the river
restricted as it enters the city centre, for many visitors the
location and opportunities provided by the river remain
an unknown attraction.

This project will redevelop the 300 m stretch of riverbank,
and beyond, between the Great Western Way and A49.
Hereford Rowing Club will be given the opportunity to
redevelop their boathouse and riverside access facilities.

The focus of the site will be on outdoor events, riverside
and water based leisure activities, and a small scale
food, drink and retail offer, accompanying a residential
presence. Enhanced access will be provided to the
riverside via Greyfriars Ave for vehicles, and for cyclists
and pedestrians via connections directly onto the Great
Western Way.

Leisure activities will be aimed at developing the site for
two primary purposes, firstly as a focal point for water
based activities, including canoeing and kayaking, open
water swimming, and rowing, and secondly as a city
centre based outdoor events space that is adaptable
for a range of cultural events such as festivals, theatre
performances, or music events.

As the project develops, improvements to the linkages
to the city centre will be made with enhancements

to pedestrian crossing points of the A49 made at the

Economic master plan 2016 | 44

90

Barton Road junction. Pedestrian and cycle linkages will
be incorporated within the site to create looped trails
travelling across the river, along the southern bank to
the Bishop Meadows and back via the cathedral and
city centre, thereby ensuring the project site can be
successfully incorporated within the wider city.

In time the project will become one of a number of
natural hubs within the city aimed at pulling in tourists
and visitors to sites across the city, linked with the retail
and cultural experiences available at the Old Market and
city core.

Opportunity

There is scope for a comprehensive redevelopment of
this x acre riverside site adjacent to Hereford city centre.
The project will require a range of innovative and flexible
uses to maximise the developable area and mitigate

the impacts of river flooding, support from a range of
government initiatives will be sought to assist in the
development of these mitigating measures.

The riverbank within this project will be served directly by
a number of new build restaurants and cafés, supported
by small scale retail opportunities aimed at leisure niche
and/or localised producers.

Behind the riverfront development will be residential
properties, the potential to use innovative flood defence
methods will be explored to maximise the developable
area. Part of the existing playing fields will be converted
into a semi-permanent festival facility with grass banked
amphitheatre, camping washroom facilities, and electrical
points to facilitate city centre camping.



Quick Facts
Sponsor

Scale

Type

Location
Investment Type
Programme

Herefordshire Council

£15m

Mixed use riverside regeneration

Hereford City Centre

Equity co-investment and development finance
2019-2022

45 | Economic master plan 2016




Hereford Football Club

Overview

Edgar Street is a football ground with a long and special
history. Past glories and bitter defeats have played out
within and around the ground, none more so than the
2014/15 season when Hereford United were put into
liquidation.

Since then the club has risen from the ashes of financial
oblivion with a new name and a new identity. After all
the turmoil, a fresh start beckoned. Hereford United
Supporters Club with the backing of local benefactors
have set about starting a new club and their first season
as a phoenix club has been a remarkable tale of success
and redemption.

League and cup success led to promotion and a trip

to Wembley, the feel good factor had returned to
Edgar Street. Importantly this impact has not been
confined to the stadium. Located opposite the Old
Market retail development and with Waitrose the
immediate neighbour, the football cub regularly attracts
attendances of over 4,000, many of whom use the

city centre either before or after games. Rising up

the leagues brings greater competition but also the
prospect of greater attendances, particularly from away
supporters.

There is an opportunity for the club, and the ground, to
make even more of a contribution towards the vitality
of Hereford City, the Edgar Street ground itself should
become a focus at the heart of the city of which the
club, its supporters, and the city itself should feel proud.
The location of the ground brings a special vibrancy

to the city on match days something that the ground

Economic master plan 2016 | 46

92

itself fails to either visually live up to or commercially
capitalise upon.

There is significant scope for a partial redevelopment
of the ground, with the football club remaining in situ,
which will improve the in-ground facilities without
impacting on the ongoing use for footballing purposes.
Whilst redevelopment of the ground will bring a
greater quality of match day experience, an enhanced
commercial opportunity, and rejuvenate the tired
elements of the stadium, there is the potential to go
one step further and consider exploring the prospect of
a ground share arrangement between Hereford Rugby
Club and Hereford FC.

It is recognised that there are numerous examples,
particularly in northern England, of intersport ground
sharing with notable examples including Coventry City
FC and Wasps RFC sharing the Ricoh Arena, Hull AFC
(Football) and Hull FC (Rugby League) sharing the KC
Stadium, and Swansea City FC and Ospreys RFC sharing
the Liberty stadium.

For such a venture to be successful this would require
the “buy in” of both clubs boards and supporters whilst
also requiring an investment in the playing surface as
well as the stadium facilities, but conceivably there is the
opportunity to develop a genuine, city centre, sporting
and leisure facility that brings a wider profile for both
clubs as well as commercial advantage to all.



Opportunity

Redevelopment of the Edgar Street ground would
require significant involvement of the club and its
supporters, however the potential exists to constructed
new, or redevelop the existing stands alongside a
variety of ancillary facilities as well as non-related
uses. The ground, and Hereford Football Club,

could benefit from on-site gym and training facilities,
enhanced conferencing and hospitality amenities, and
increased match day sales units — food, drink and club
merchandise.

These sporting orientated changes could be
supplemented by, more commercially focused, small
scale retail uses, in particular on the Blackfriars Street
frontage mirroring the Old Market development, or
residential or hotel units above or behind the stands,
benefiting from the existing building massing in the area
and the neighbouring urban village development.

Quick Facts

Sponsor Herefordshire Council / Hereford
Football Club

Scale (£) £10m

Type Stadium redevelopment with
ancillary leisure and retail uses.

Location Hereford City Centre

Investment Type  Developer and development funder

Programme 2018-2021

93

47 | Economic master plan 2016



Movement and Street Scene

Overview

The Herefordshire transport network converges on
Hereford and it includes access to local and long
distance rail services making it the most accessible
location for the majority of county residents. The
challenges that exist on the existing network —
congestion, lack of resilience, Strategic long distance
traffic routed through the city centre — will be addressed
by the construction of the Hereford bypass and the
accompanying package of sustainable measures.

The current A49 places a significant severance between
the city core, the urban village development sites, the
Old Market development , and the residential areas to
the west, and in particular the courtyard theatre and
proposed riverside developments. The completion of
the bypass will create opportunity to better manage the
existing road network in Hereford, and offers solutions
to address the severance issue.

Significant streetscape improvements have been
implemented along Newmarket Street, with a wide,
tree lined boulevard now fronting the Old Market
development, this style will be continued along
Blueschool Street and around to Commercial Road
joining with the new city link road and railway station.

Following the creation of the bypass upgrades will be
made to both Edgar Street and Victoria Street to bring
them up to the same standard as Newmarket Street.
This will include at grade crossing points at the Barton
Road and Eign Street junctions (including the removal
of the underpass at the latter junction) and at the
Courtyard theatre.

Economic master plan 2016 | 48

94

The councils parking strategy looks to move the current
supply which is located mainly at the edge of the
historic core to an edge of centre location. A number of
sites on the principal commuter routes will be identified
as new MSCP sites to intercept traffic before it reaches
the city centre. Chosen for their accessibility from the
key road network, sites will be clearly signposted and
provide a supply for both commuter and visitor parking.

Opportunity

The review of car parking identifies that Hereford has
an appropriate number of car parking spaces just not
in the right location and spread over too many sites.
This leads to an uncoordinated and un-strategic level of

parking supply.

Two or three edge of centre sites will be identified as
the replacement for the current supply. Built as MSCP’s
the sites will represent an opportunity to manage the
movement of vehicles into the city centre and capture
both visitor and commuter parking demand.

The sites to be considered are the county bus station on
commercial road, St Martins Street/Asda Supermarket,
Eign Street, and Friar Street. Other appropriate sites
would be considered if they came forward. Combined
there is a requirement to accommodate x car parking
spaces.



Quick Facts
Sponsor

Scale ()

Type

Location
Investment Type
Programme

Herefordshire Council

£25m

Car parking facilities

Hereford City Centre

Developer and development funder
2018-2025

1

hEREmTa

™
i
!’.‘
]
s
i
i

l!nam‘ . -

Wlananse

49 | Economic master plan 2016




NMITE

Overview

Crucial to our future plans is the planned creation

of a new engineering university for the UK, based

in Hereford - the New Model in Technology &
Engineering (NMITE). This exciting project to create a
new, independent, not-for-profit world class teaching

university will have a game-changing impact on the city,

county and UK plc.

NMITE is scheduled to be a new independent, not-
for-profit, world-class teaching university, based in
Hereford that will address the skills shortage for
graduate engineers in Marches and British businesses
in advanced manufacturing, agri-engineering, data,
defence, resources security and sustainable/smart living
technology sectors.

The curriculum will be targeted at the needs of
engineering and technology employers to produce
employment-ready, productive, industry relevant,
innovative, economically and financially literate
graduates who will be able communicators and project
managers.

With a new approach to learning — based on real-
world problem solving and the blending of high quality
engineering and design with communication and
employability skills targeted at the growth sectors of
the future, the NMITE project is projecting a student
population of 5,000 by 2031.

Economic master plan 2016 | 50

96

NMITE are committed to the construction of a state of
the art 21st century teaching and innovation campus in
the centre of Hereford, developed on the latest ‘agile’
principles involving the construction/or refurbishment of
teaching and administrative facilities. Linked to the city
centre facilities will be laboratories and workshops and
the NMITE Application & Development centre on the
Enterprise Zone.

The first phase of the project will see over 1000
students taking courses by 2021, rising to 5,000 by
2031. The current rental market within Hereford is
not geared to meet this level of demand so students
will predominately be housed within dedicated
accommodation in various units across the city.

The project has made rapid progress over the course of
18 months with the private sector promoters building
a management team, developing a curriculum and
sourcing academic institutional partners and business
contributions. To establish itself, NMITE is seeking
Government funding, with the Council willing to invest
in, and take shared risk, on the provision of student
accommodation.



Sponsor Herefordshire Tertiary Education

Trust e = i N’
{ IS

Scale £80m - i i

Type Education and Student 1
Accommaodation | |
Location Hereford City Centre | | . .

Investment Type  Equity investor, developer and
development funder

Programme 2018-2025 e — L }:" __lﬁ\ﬁ;

Opportunity

Current accommodation plans envisage three sites each of 350 units all located within easy walking distance of
the University’s academic buildings, the residences will provide a superb environment for living and studying with
generous en-suite bedrooms, including hard wired and Wi-Fi internet access.

NMITE are looking for private sector partners who can match their expectations for accommodation of a very high
quality design providing all the modern facilities expected by the students of tomorrow.

As a city centre based University there will be significant opportunity for the student population to be integrated
with the local population and in particular to use the service, culture and leisure facilities available within Hereford.
There will be opportunities to provide a range of services, which aren’t currently available (or only available to a
limited extent), aimed directly or partially at the student market.

With the expectation that redundant shops will be turned into seminar spaces and old offices with the right floor
plans converted into studio/worklabs for 20-30 students — no lecture halls, no mass classroom settings — there will be
significant investment opportunities for private sector partners.

51 | Economic master plan 2016

97



Berrington Street Regeneration Area

Overview

The historic core of Hereford city is contained within the
old city walls and as an area it encompasses the majority
of the cities retail and cultural offer, with attractions
such as the cathedral and High Town prominent
features. However there are significant areas of
underutilised land existing in close proximity to the retail
and historic core.

These locations present an opportunity to undertake
a comprehensive regeneration and establish higher
value uses combined with activities that add a wider
economic, commercial and cultural value to the city
centre. On a sustainable basis these development
sites are well located in terms of their proximity to
employment, retail and leisure facilities in addition to
being well served by public transport.

Whilst there are number of small scale sites across the
city that could benefit from redevelopment, there is a
large site located between the A49, West Street, Broad
Street and Kings Street/St Nicholas Street that presents
an opportunity to regenerate a currently underutilised
area of Hereford city centre.

The x acre site is currently in a variety of ownerships,
partnerships would be encouraged between landowners
and development partners to assemble the site and
undertake a comprehensive master planning of the area
which looks to incorporate appropriate existing uses.

Economic master plan 2016 | 52

98

Indicative opportunities that could be incorporated
into regeneration schemes for the area include student
accommodation to address the demand created by the
NMITE project, small scale/niche retailing, A1 café, bars
and food outlets, live/work units, and pure residential
elements.

The vision for the area is to create a sense of traditional
city centre living with a densely populated development
which is aimed at a young market demographic.
Dominated by flats and starter units the development
will encourage movement away from car borne
transport with access to units through interconnecting
courtyards and pedestrian walkways.

Local facilities will include small scale retail and
employment units in a similar manner to Shad Thames
catering for those who live within the city but also
becoming a tourist attraction in its own right, offering a
local food, drink and retailing offer.



Opportunity

Proposals are welcomed for genuine mixed use schemes which offer a comprehensive redevelopment of the area. A
high density of residential units is expected and encouraged, particularly where the predominant use is for smaller
and starter units.

A high quality of public realm landscape and street scene are essential for this area to enable the site to act as a
destination in its own right and to act as an additional visitor and leisure attraction that complements the rest of the
city centre, and in particular the regard to the proximity to the historic cathedral quarter. Developments that feature
high levels of pedestrian permeability with varied and interesting street patterns incorporating courtyards, cut-
through’s, and pedestrianised streets will particularly encouraged.

Small scale retail, food outlets and B1 office accommodation should feature as an integral element of any scheme
to ensure that development has a vibrancy, footfall, and activity adding an element of self-sufficiency and offering a
range of attractions with which to entice visitors.

Sponsor thc

Scale £100m

Type Residential and mixed use city
centre redevelopment

Location Hereford City Centre

Investment Type  Equity investor, developer and
development funder
Programme 2020-2025

53 | Economic master plan 2016

o9



The Racecourse

Overview

Equestrian sports, and National Hunt racing in particular,
has a long and prestigious history in Herefordshire, it's
a county that can boast top trainers, Grand National
winners, and the 2016 Champion jockey, Richard
Johnson. The centre of that association should be
Hereford racecourse, which has staged racing since
1771, however in recent times the course has struggled
to maintain its position within the annual racing
calendar due to falling attendances and a lack of
alternative commercial activity.

Racing is important for the city, not only does it attract
a few thousand visitors every race meeting but it

brings commercial awareness to the city and exposure
to a national audience. With approximately a dozen
National Hunt race meets each year, the course has
significant potential to expand its range of activities and
events to become a year round facility.

There is a good range of current on site facilities backed
by land and services that could accommodate a range
of other activities. Additionally there are a number of
locations neighbouring the course that also provide
opportunities to accommodate an enhanced sporting
and leisure provision.

Located close enough to the city to benefit from

the range of services on offer and the regeneration
proposals being brought forward, the course, adjoining
locations, and in particular the grandstands and
associated buildings are ideally placed to offer an
expanded leisure orientated facility.

Economic master plan 2016 | 54

100

There is significant local demand from the business
community for a high class business hotel and
conference facility. With an expanding national and
international client base, locally based businesses are
stressing the need for modern, well presented facilities
that match their client expectations and that can stand
alongside those provided in competing towns and cities
across the country.

With the views across the city and towards the Black
Mountains there is considerable potential for the
location to provide Hereford with an expanded high
class sports and leisure facility that can cater for a

range of outdoor and indoor sports and activities,
alongside a commercial presence that offers high quality
hotel accommodation, conferencing facilities, and a
wraparound offer.



Opportunity

The priority for the racecourse site is that it continues to provide a continued programme of National Hunt, and
other, racing, that supports the local racing community and can provide trainers and jockeys with opportunities to
develop their talent.

To ensure this priority is met there is a realisation that the racecourse site needs to be a commercial success and
maximising the year round, 356 day income potential is the best way of achieving this success. Diversification of the
site for a range of commercial and leisure activities would be encouraged particularly as a mechanism for achieving
an enhanced commercial operation.

In addition to the highly commercialised aspects of this opportunity Hereford has ambition to host a number of
national level sporting tournaments or championships to bring recognition and profile, particularly being targeted
from an indoor sport perspective are sports such as fencing, table tennis, indoor climbing, badminton, weightlifting,
and various martial arts. As a longer term aspiration this will bring greater demand for the provision of these sports
and the required facilities.

The physical racecourse has a number of linked and neighbouring occupiers which are equally positioned to be able
to provide this diversification of offer and leisure experience and there is the potential for a number of separate
locations around the racecourse to contribute towards the enablement of this project as well as making an active
contribution into the wider expansion of the Herefordshire based regeneration.

Sponsor Herefordshire Council / Northern
Racing

Scale £50m - £80m

Type Hotel accommodation,

conferencing facilities with
associated sporting and leisure
facilities

Location Hereford

Investment Type  Development Finance
Co Investment

Programme 2020-2025

55 | Economic master plan 2016

101



Hereford Business Quarter

Overview

Hereford City has a tradition of serving a large
catchment area, for a range of employment,
entertainment, transport connections, and health
purposes. The city provides a range of services and
employment that draws in a working population from
across the county and beyond.

Just as the Old Market retail and leisure development
has enabled Hereford to recapture some of the lost
retail spend, with the growth of the city and an
emerging service sector there exists opportunity for

the city to reassert its place as the principle supplier of
service sector jobs and facilities to the rest of the county,
to south Shropshire and into mid wales.

Current demand for new office space is outstripping
supply, the Enterprise Zone is looking to meet some of
this demand by providing targeted sectors with new
office space and developments such as Skylon Court
have achieved rental levels above expectations.

Hereford City centre remains the location of choice for
professional service firms with a cluster of accountants,
solicitors, architects and property agents all based
within the city centre. Additionally it is recognised that
there are a growing number of firms requiring an office
presence to serve a wider business. These businesses
help provide a vibrancy to the city by supporting many
of the retail and food and drink outlets though their
staff and customers linked trips.

Economic master plan 2016 | 56

102

In addition to the established professional services
market it is acknowledged that there are a number

of young, vibrant businesses emerging within
Herefordshire, in the defence, security, and food and
drink sectors. The growth of these businesses will
provide additional demand for office space to serve the
requirement for back office accommodation to support
the wider business.

In common with many historical cities the office

market largely consists of small scale, converted former
residential properties, providing adequate but not
purpose build accommodation. There is a definitive
opportunity to allocate space to serve this growing
market and plan for new business accommodation that
can provide for modern working practises and customer
expectations.

A newly allocated business quarter should look to
capitalise on the proximity of the railway station and
numerous bus routes, whilst also linking into the wider
retail and leisure offer provided across Hereford city
centre.

It is anticipated that Bath Street and Gaol Street will
become the focus for this business quarter, with
nearby facilities such as the Magistrates Court, Crown
Court, and emerging proposals for the new University
providing complementary assets to the professional
services sector.



Sponsor thc

Scale Sgm x £1800
Type B1 office development
Location Hereford City Centre

Investment Type  Equity co-investment and
development finance
Programme 2020 -2031

Opportunity
The core of the opportunity will centre around the current West Mercia Police station and its car park, the

neighbouring public car park fronting Bath Street, and the council owned car park opposite on Gaol Street. Taken
together this forms a site of approx. x ha.

Current buildings along Bath Street rise to five storeys and similar massing could be accommodated on this frontage.
Any development off Goal Street would need to sensitively interact with the buildings fronting onto St Owen Street,
a number of which are Listed, but multi storey development could be achieved fronting onto Goal Street.

In total it is envisaged that approx. x sgm of B1 office floor space could be created in a city centre development site,
ideally located for the railway station, existing retail and leisure offer, and a range of government, legal, and other
supportive assets.

57 | Economic master plan 2016

103



Herefordshire — County of Culture

Text to be follow

Economic master plan 2016 | 58

104



Sponsor

Scale

Type

Location
Investment Type

Programme

Opportunity

59 | Economic master plan 2016

105



The Lugg Living Landscape: Hereford’s Green

Overview

Being a rural city, Hereford is surrounded by a fertile,
living, working, landscape which offers an opportunity
to “get away from it all”. However access to the
network of walks and byways can be restrictive even

for those living in and around the city. Frequently there
is a lack of car parking facilities, routes can be poorly
signed or maintained, and access for those with mobility
constraints can be varied.

Hereford’s situation on the banks of the River Wye is
well known, what is less well appreciated is the city’s
interaction and relationship with the River Lugg, a
significant tributary of the Wye which flows to the east
of the city.

The Lugg river valley stretches throughout the north of
the county from the Welsh Border to its confluence with
the Wye to the south east of Hereford. The section of
river valley between Bodenham and Hereford features
lush meadows, working farm landscapes, and a series of
artificial lakes formed from mineral extraction.

The landscape of this section of the Lugg Valley is
generally flat, of varied use, and offers significant
potential for an enhancement to the natural and
ecological environment. The mineral extraction sites at
Wellington and Lugg Bridge provide opportunity for a
variety of future ecological and leisure uses. Working
with the private sector including the extractive industry
is, therefore, going to be crucial.

Economic master plan 2016 | 60

106

Habitat restoration is considered the primary long term
use for these extraction sites but this does not preclude
complementary uses. It is anticipated that the length
of the Lugg Valley between Hereford and Bodenham is
opened up for sensitively designed public access with
as appropriate to the specific context: enhancements to
existing and construction of new footpaths, river access
points, wildlife viewing points, car parking locations,
and wildlife habitats.

The project will have a number of additional benefits,
firstly by providing opportunities to deliver a range of
health and wellbeing benefits, improving phosphate
levels and building in flood resilience within the River
Lugg; and increasing attractiveness of the area by
boosting its wildlife offer.

Furthermore, by working with landowners the project
will help sustainable agricultural practices, conserving
valuable Herefordshire soils and building resilience
within the important farming industry.



Sponsor
Scale

Type
Location
Investment Type

Programme

Opportunity

Herefordshire Nature Trust
£5m

Habitat restoration and linked
visitor attractions

Lugg River Valley north east
Hereford

Construction and business
opportunities

2018-2028

Queenswood already attracts 450,000 visitations per year, many from the wider region. The aim is to boost this
number and increase the value derived from and to visitors and residents alike by making the wider Lugg living
landscape into a better place for people and wildlife. Work has already been planned to enhance bodenham Lake

from both perspectives.

A number of facilities will be constructed or improved to provide better visitor infrastructure. Limited eco-friendly
housing might even be possible off the back of the restoration of the natural environment. Activities will range
from the passive — bird and wildlife watch hides and trails, to the active — water based recreation, pond dipping,
nature trails. The landscape design will attract visitors businesses and residents alike, furthering the aim of making
the county into a great place to live whilst maintaining and enhancing its natural capital by increasing its resilience to

flooding, climate change, loss of pollinators that service agriculture, etc.

Opportunities will exist to provide supplementary services such as café’s, souvenir shops, equipment hire and activity
booking as well as accommodation provision. This type of project has even more economic potential in other more
rural areas of the county such as the north west where there are huge opportunities for nature based tourism
through landscape and wildlife enhancements.

107

61 | Economic master plan 2016



Countywide ambition

Business Incubator Programme

Overview

There is an amazingly diverse and inventive range of
businesses operating across Herefordshire, of which a
significant proportion (State figure) are micro enterprises
— businesses employing less than 10 people. Taken
together these businesses employ x percent of the
Herefordshire workforce.

Herefordshire has always been a county which supports
its own and where small, family based businesses

have grown to become nationally and internationally
recognised brands. Tyrells Crisps, Bulmers, \Westons
Cider, M&M Sports, PGL Leisure, have grown and
prospered within the county.

With the right environment and support other
businesses could follow these trailblazers, if growth
companies were identified targeted packages of support
could be developed that would aim to further increase
growth and employment prospects.

Vibrant, growing, innovative companies exist across
the county. There is no particular geography where
these businesses are located, Hereford as the largest
settlement clearly has the largest number of companies
but not the monopoly on fantastic businesses. The
market towns and the rural areas also have their

fair share of innovators and, importantly, are able to
serve different markets and take advantage of wider
opportunities.

Economic master plan 2016 | 62

108

To promote and provide a focus for this support it is
proposed to develop a series of business incubation
centres which provide flexible, affordable, workspace,
accompanied with a wraparound offer of meeting
rooms, reception facilities, postal and ICT services.

The suite of incubation centres will be anchored by

a large incubation centre on the Enterprise Zone in
Hereford, this building is to be housed in a refurbished
building financed by Herefordshire Council, ERDF
funding and government sources. Other centres will be
either newly built or created in existing council buildings
across the market towns. The rollout of this programme
will be dictated by the provision and availability of
suitably located and specified buildings, however the
key market towns will be prioritised, in particular where
is a shortage of business accommodation or known
demand exists.

An accompanying range of business support services
will be coordinated across the suite of centres by

the Marches Growth Hub and Herefordshire Council
working closely with partners such as Wolverhampton
University.

This business support will include access to funding and
grants, provision of workshops, seminars, and business
support. A range of advice will be given to businesses
looking to grow, taking on staff, or thinking of starting
a new venture, this will be supported by a series of
sector specific networks, and business mentors passing
on their experience and knowledge to those starting
their business journey.



Sponsor
Scale

Type
Location

Investment Type

Programme

Opportunity

tbc

£8m

B1 office and light industrial
incubation accommodation
Herefordshire Market Towns
Equity co-investment and
development finance, developers
and construction partners
2019-2025

The council are undertaking to construct the first, and probably largest, Incubation Hub by refurbishing a building
on the Enterprise Zone to be opened in 2018. A number of potential locations across the market towns are being

explored in the search for sites for similar, if smaller, buildings.

To bring forward the project the council will be investigating a number of delivery options, whether direct
development of new build premises, refurbishment or conversion of existing buildings, or placing council land into a

development agreement with a third party provider.

There are potential partnering opportunities for office developers and operators of incubation space in addition
to the construction opportunities involved with the development of a suite of centres. This is over and above the
benefits that will accrue to the tenants of these centres, which will provide accommodation to house growing
companies and facilitate new employment creation.

109

63 | Economic master plan 2016



Model Farm Enterprise Park

Overview

The Model Farm Enterprise Park project is a unique
proposition that will support the economic viability

of southern Herefordshire. It will deliver a strategic
employment site located on the M50 motorway and
will unlock £32m of private sector investment (7:1
private to public ratio), 10ha of employment land,
1000 jobs/£31m per annum GVA uplift and 29,000m2
of industrial internal floor space to meet an evidenced
need.

Planning permission for the scheme is in place and

the site is wholly owned by the council. The council
proposes to develop the infrastructure on the site then
directly sell plots to developers or owner occupiers.

Model Farm is the gateway to markets in the Midlands,
Wales, the West and the Republic of Ireland due to
excellent transport links that include direct access to the
M50 to the Midlands/South West/M5, the A40 (linking
to the M4 corridor) to the South West/\Wales/Bristol and
the A49 to Hereford and the spine of the Marches.

Model Farm has the flexibility to provide land/premises
to meet the requirements of a range of business

uses and sizes with plots available from a 2 acre to

the entire 20 acre site. There has been a significant
amount of initial interest in the development due to the
current under supply within south Herefordshire and
neighbouring authorities.

Economic master plan 2016 | 64

110

With its excellent motorway and other transport

links, the site is a key gateway between the Marches/
Midlands, the west of England, Wales and the Irish
export market. The wider area provides an outstanding
business environment with a strong, loyal and proactive
private sector and an excellent track record of delivering
new housing, jobs and businesses.

Model Farm is situated within a sustainable urban
extension to the market town of Ross on Wye that
will deliver over 600 homes. These new houses will
provide homes for workers and on the site with
the development of the enterprise park providing
developers confidence and a greater certainty for a
timely delivery of the allocations.



Sponsor Herefordshire Council

Scale £1m to £45m

Type Commercial business part
development. Small scale
residential and leisure / retail uses.

Location Ross-on-Wye, south Herefordshire.
Development finance

Investment Type  Co-investment

Programme 2018-2028

Opportunity

Following the installation of the site infrastructure plots will be offered to the business and development market.
Given the close proximity to the motorway network and lack of localised competing commercial floor space the site
will be attractive to investors and owner occupiers alike. Plots can be configured to accommodate a wide variety of
end users and size requirements ranging from a half acre to 8 acres. Purchase of the entire estate as a development
opportunity will be considered.

Particular regard will be given to speculative B1 developments that offer modern, attractive architecture that sets

a high quality precedent for the park. As with any large employment site it is recognised that there will be the
opportunity to accommodate a certain element of a wraparound offer, whether leisure or food related. This element
will be planned from the outset and particular sites will be offered for these purposes.

There is a limited opportunity for a partial development of the site buffer zone for a residential purpose, this would
need to be sympathetic to both the neighbouring existing residential uses and the proposed commercial space on
the site.

65 | Economic master plan 2016

111



Redevelopment of Leominster Broad Street ¢z

Overview

Leominster is the principle market town in the north

of Herefordshire. With a population of 12,000 and

a similarly sized catchment area the town provides

a service and retail hub for a sizeable element of

the county and beyond. Additionally the town is
scheduled to accommodate considerable growth with
an additional 2,300 houses proposed to be constructed
within the Master Plan timescales.

The residential growth of the town requires support in
terms of an enhanced service, employment, and retail
offer. Whilst a large employment site is allocated to the
south of the town there is a need to identify and bring
forward suitable sites within the town centre that can
accommodate retail and service provision.

With its connectivity to the existing retail core, the
heritage offered by the nearby Leominster Priory, and
waterside opportunities on the banks of the Kenwater
river, the current Broad Street car park offers an ideal
location for a range of potential end uses. Sequentially
it is perhaps the best located site within the town to
accommodate an enhanced retail provision, and given
its size it could be redeveloped for a single or multiple
occupier(s).

Economic master plan 2016 | 66

112

Opportunity

The site is approximately 3 acres in size (check), is flat,
has direct access to the A44, links into an existing
footpath network and is within a single, public,
ownership.

Herefordshire Council as landowners are committed to
undertaking a market valuation of the site and will be
appointing agents tasked with managing the marketing
of the land in the anticipation of receiving expressions
of interest/bids from prospective purchasers/developers.

Uses that significantly upgrade or improve the current
retail and service provision within the town will be
particularly interesting to the council.



Quick Facts
Sponsor
Scale

Type

Location
Investment Type
Programme

Herefordshire Council

Dependant on end use
Redevelopment site with potential
for a variety of end uses
Leominster

Development partner or purchaser
2017-2019

67 | Economic master plan 2016




Leominster Railway Station Improvements

Overview

Located on the Cardiff to Manchester line, Leominster
benefits from an hourly service in both directions, with
typical journey times to Hereford of 16 minutes, or of
approx. 40 minutes to reach Shrewsbury. Ordinarily this
level of service would present significant commuting
opportunities from the station both locally to Hereford,
Ludlow and Shrewsbury but also more widely to Cardiff
and Manchester.

Passenger numbers at the station are on the increase
with the 2014/15 number of passengers rising by
just over 25,000 on the 2013/14 figure to a total

of just under 274,000 per annum. It is considered
that passenger numbers could further increase if the
facilities at the station were improved. Currently the
station lacks for toilet facilities, refreshments, and an
appropriately sized car park.

The current station accommodates approximately 15 car
parking spaces with some additional disabled spaces.
Given the relative distance from the town centre and
other long term car parking options this lack of spaces
significantly impacts on the attractiveness of the station
from a commuter perspective.

Alternative car parking arrangements should be
investigated, with a preference for a location to the east
of the railway line and access direct from the A49 trunk
road. Potential exists to construct new car parking
facilities on land currently constrained for other uses
due to the proximity to a flood plain, and the relative
market unattractiveness due to being sandwiched
between the A49 and the railway.

Economic master plan 2016 | 63

114

These facilities would provide easily accessible, highly
visible, long term car parking that could equally serve
the railway station and the wider, long stay, parking
requirements for Leominster.

Opportunity

Potential exists to develop a surface car park on current
agricultural land at a location between the A49 and
Marches railway line to the east of the current railway
station. An appropriate charging regime could be
introduced commensurate with the car park serving
long stay users and commuters.

Additional but ancillary commercial uses could be
introduced where they serve the station users and
provide a complementary service to the railway station
and car parking. In particular it is noted that a number
of basic services are currently not available at Leominster
station and the addition of these, either as part of the
car parking provision or within the existing station
building, would be supported.



Quick Facts
Sponsor
Scale

Type

Location
Investment Type
Programme

TBC

f2mto £3m

Car parking construction and
potential ancillary activities
Leominster

Development partner or purchaser
2019-2021

69 | Economic master plan 2016




The Herefordshire Food and Rural

Business Centre

Overview

The Herefordshire Food and Rural Business Centre will
be a showcase for food, drink and creative and rural
industries in Herefordshire with the aim of providing a
high quality retail and leisure offer and for both local
people and visitors.

It is expected that the Centre will be located in a semi-
rural location and perhaps act as a farm diversification
project which will secure the future of the farm business
and enable other local businesses to be brought on

as partners and tenants as the business opportunities
grow.

Established early on as a farm shop using produce
grown on the farm, complemented with other local
food and drink suppliers the Herefordshire Centre will
become a catalyst to develop the wholesale, catering
and butchery side of the business and has the potential
to diversify with tenant partners into craft, exhibition
space, local services, café, office space and retail units
and even allotments.

The Centre will provide an provide an opportunity for
rural businesses to meet their customers and create an
exciting environment for them to grow their businesses
in a flexible creative place.

Economic master plan 2016 | 70

116

Opportunity

In a new approach for Herefordshire we picture the
Herefordshire Centre growing from a simple farm shop
enterprise to become a collection of businesses which
will become established as a vibrant working community
in itself.

Choosing a location and structure suited to a variety of
different business enterprises the Herefordshire Centre
will create the opportunities to grow to include a wide
offer of retail, leisure, crafts and even local services
such as a post office making it a popular stop for both
passing visitors and the local population.

Supporting Herefordshire and the Market Towns is key
to the opportunity as is identifying a major site or site(s)
in Herefordshire where the creation of a the Centre will
add to the local offer without displacing existing local
services.

The Centre will be located near major transport route,
such as the A49, M50, A40 corridors, and located
within a catchment area incorporating a market town
and surrounding villages. More than one centre could
be developed if there is appropriate demand.



The provision on site will complement existing offers in
the area. However with carefully planned development
and growth the Food Centre will be able to create jobs
and opportunities for a variety of local businesses. A
different planning approach to the project will allow for
a variety of small businesses, starter units and flexibility
of use to give opportunities for new businesses to start,
grow and move on in a location with great facilities.

Successes in the county include the Hop Pocket and
Oakchurch, and outside the county the Ludlow Food
Centre, there is a real opportunity to repeat this success
in other parts of the County.

Quick Facts

Sponsor Private sector landowner or estate

Scale £3m

Type Herefordshire Food and Tourism
Offer

Location TBC

Investment Type  Equity investor, pump priming,
DEFRA Growth Programme

Programme 2018-2025

71 | Economic master plan 2016




Developing a distinctive identity

A supportive business landscape

Small and Medium sized enterprises (SME’s) are the
lifeblood of the Herefordshire economy. X% of all
Herefordshire businesses can be considered an SME,
and collectively they employ over y people. Supporting
the growth of SME’s is fundamental to the success of
Herefordshire and the ambitions contained within this
Master Plan.

Yet support needs to be targeted to have the most
impact. The sharing of scarce financial and human
resource will be most beneficial if allocated to those
businesses most likely or willing to grow.

Fundamental to this approach is the utilisation of

the Herefordshire Growth Hub. Part of a Marches
wide support network the Growth Hub is both a
virtual and physical resource. A website ( www.
marchesgrowthhub.co.uk ) acts as the access point for
all public sector support available to businesses within
the county, ranging across patent advice from the
Intellectual Property Office to exporting support from
UK Trade and Investment.

Supporting the website is the physical Growth Hub
building located centrally in Rotherwas, Hereford.

The Hub houses Herefordshire Council business

facing staff alongside partners from the University of
Wolverhampton, UKTI, the Chamber of Commerce, and
a range of private sector organisations.

Economic master plan 2016 | 72

118

Since opening in January 2016 the Hub has hosted over
60 events for businesses with a combined audience of
over 1200. Although a number of outreach events have
been hosted in various market towns the Hub is the
primary resource for engaging with businesses and the
aim is to double the number of events and participants
per annum, and achieve a 85% positive rating of the
service.

Information, training and other advice is only one

form of support to be made available to businesses.
Research of the local business community has identified
access to finance, the availability of suitable business
accommodation, and networking and sector support as
also being important to the local business base.

Utilising EU, national, and local funding a range of
projects are being developed to address the above
issues and provide support to those businesses looking
to grow. Projects such as the Building Investment
Grant, Business Growth Programme, and the Shell Store
Incubation centre provide a locally delivered partner to
a range of research and innovation projects being run
through a variety of regional Universities.



Given the GVA imbalance that exists within the county
there is a particular emphasis on improving productivity
through these and other programmes. A leading
component of this approach is the development, by the
University of Wolverhampton, of a new Cyber Security
centre of excellence. Once constructed the building will
provide state of the art cyber security research facilities
and enable direct business engagement into research
projects, whether themselves or in partnership with the
university.

Whilst the majority of the business base may consist

of SME’s, the largest 25 companies across the county
employ a significant proportion of the total workforce.
The retention of these businesses and a continued
programme of investment, is crucial to maintaining a
diverse business base, whilst also demonstrating that
large, multinational companies are capable of operating
from within the county.

73 | Economic master plan 2016



Inspiring an entrepreneurial generation

Herefordshire has a proud record of developing and
nurturing successful businesses. Household names
such as Bulmer’s, Tyrrells Crips, and Weston's Cider, are
joined by less known but equally important firms such
as PGL, Allpay, and Cargill, all have their origins as local
firms come good. Given the competition for inward
investment it is important for the county that the next
generation of entrepreneurs are identified early and
supported to grow their business within the county.

Young people within Herefordshire have amazing
potential, and a fantastic opportunity. The county can
boast leading colleges, and schools, institutions that
compare favourably with the best the rest of the UK
has to offer. However the academic life is not for every
young person and there are likely to be a significant
proportion of young people who would welcome a
different path in life, one that can give a degree of
independence, flexibility, reward, and huge satisfaction.

Consideration is being given to the development of a
programme of support and enablement to encourage
young people to harness their entrepreneurial skills
and to begin life as their own boss. Already the Young
enterprise initiative operates across x schools and last
year had over y participants who started a business,
developed the business plan, sold products and
eventually closed the company down.

Economic master plan 2016 | 74

120

In addition to giving students direct experience of
running a business the programme is a significant
enabler of social and communication skills, contributing
to young people’s CV's and employability in a way that
perfectly complements an academic education.

To foster entrepreneurship across the county a wider
range of initiatives would need to be held and over

a period of time where success and impact can be
measured properly. Although the composition of any
wider programme is in development it is feasible to
assume that the following projects could play a part:

e Establishing a school alumni programme with
former pupils running businesses acting as
champions and ambassadors for the school and for
enterprise.

e Subsidised start up space for young people fresh
from college or school

¢ Targeted training events aimed specifically at young
people

e A programme of talks and presentations from
successful local business people

¢ A mentoring programme where successful
businesses provide advice and guidance to new
start ups.



The potential within Herefordshire's young people is a
resource that should be harnessed for the good of the
county. If becoming a business person was considered
to be a viable route to work for even a small proportion
of the counties school and college leavers there would
be a significant increase in the local business base.

Whilst it is almost inevitable that a high proportion

of these businesses may fail, that itself is part of the
learning experience. Dealing with customers, suppliers,
and work colleagues will generate confidence, initiative,
and resilience.

This has the potential to deliver additional benefits
could be felt across the social care and benefits system
as young people find the inspiration and drive to make
their business a success.

75 | Economic master plan 2016



Dare to Win

Overview

With it's varied landscape and considerable natural
features, Herefordshire is an ideal location for a wide
variety of outdoor pursuits and active leisure interests,
whether as a part of an organised event or an individual
pursuit. Whilst there is a considerable number of
businesses who offer formalised activities, and clubs
who provide planned and organised events, there

is still considerable scope for a greater coordination
and integration of a host of sporting and recreational
activities.

Within the UK there is a growing appetite and market
for outdoor and “alternative” sporting activities. In
Herefordshire the established local outdoor activity
scene features the established sports of canoeing and
mountain biking alongside less mainstream activities
such as mountain boarding, extreme assault courses,
and zorbing.

The potential exists to become a lead provider for these
alternative sporting activities by providing specialist
facilities for particular activities, increased marketing of
activity locations and specific companies, and by hosting
regional and national level events or competitions.

The generation of a suite of seasonal activities and
improving the coordination between providers and
clubs/organisations would help develop a year round
programme of events that are delivered via a small
number of specific sites with appropriate supporting
facilities.

Economic master plan 2016 | 76

122

It is recognised that these alternative sporting activities
are self directed and are able to fit around a participants
other life commitments. Unlike the more traditional,
team based activities, people can pick and choose

the level of personal commitment to attach to these
activities without any impact on a wider team or group.
It is also apparent that the main participants of
alternative sports are of a certain demographic, often
fairly young, socially mobile, and relatively financially
well off. It is precisely this demographic group which
Herefordshire is trying to attract to the county, either as
employees or as new business owners.

Hosting competitions or events within the county

will bring an associated level of profile within that
sporting base. The size and scale of events will bring an
appropriate level of exposure and profile. Herefordshire
should aim to host at least three national level
competitions on an annual basis. The specific sports to
be hosted are to be determined.



77 | Economic master plan 2016




8. A Pipeline of Projects

The stated VIP's within this version of the Master Plan
represent the current proposals that will encourage
economic growth. By no means is this list exhaustive
and neither does it reflect all the opportunities within
Herefordshire. A fundamental aspect of the master
plan is that the document is a “living process”, and that
capacity exists for the projects and priorities within the
plan to change over time.

It is envisaged that over the length of the plan period,
projects will pass through the plan system, opportunities
will become developed, proposals may change, or
projects become implemented. In order to refresh the
plan a pipeline of projects is required to replace those
projects that pass through the plan.

To develop this pipeline of projects a clear process is
required. A detailed set of criteria will be produced to
give direction to organisations or individuals looking to
gain master plan support for their project, for example
projects will need to be of an appropriate scale, in
conformity with the Core Strategy, and deliver economic
growth to the county.

It is proposed that the plan will be reviewed on an
annual basis and that an opportunity to include new
projects within the plan will become an essential
element of this review. Demonstrating that there is

a forward process to include new projects will assist

in generating confidence and local “buy-in” to the
project in addition to enabling the plan to react to new
opportunities or market demand.

Economic master plan 2016 | 78

124

The set of criteria to be used when considering new
projects is being determined and will be published either
in the final version of the plan or shortly after adoption.




79 | Economic master plan 2016




9. Partnership and Delivery

The Master Plan will be built upon flexible partnership
working, focused on specific areas of activity or
project delivery. The challenges presented by the
size, geography, and economy of Herefordshire make
it virtually impossible to have a single partner for

all projects. We have clear evidence of our success

in delivering using this flexible strategy and believe
strongly that it delivers real benefit to residents whilst
also providing a better return on investment to our
partners and government.

It is envisaged that the Master Plan can only be
successfully delivered if this flexible partnership
approach is continued, and preferably expanded. To
deliver the projects required to drive our economic
change we will need to draw resources from central
government, public sector partners and, crucially, the
private and investment sectors.

The council does however, have an important role in
delivering an evidence base and being an advocate
for the Master Plan. Through its governance and
democratic processes the Council will initiate the

formation of the Master Plan, this will include drafting

the initial documentation and facilitating consultation
events. Additionally to give momentum and value to
the process the Council will formally approve the final
Master Plan document through Full Council. (?)

The Council has been promoting, over a number

of years, a Local Development Framework which
proactively allocates land for residential and

industrial growth, whilst also identifying the required
infrastructure to facilitate development.

Economic master plan 2016 | 80

126

Having gone through a significant period of public
consultation and challenge (before finally receiving
government approval) the adopted LDF informs the
development of the Master Plan by setting out the
broad (and sometimes specific) parameters for growth,
where this should be located, what infrastructure is
required to bring growth forward, and what quantum’s
are suitable.

The LDF therefore forms a building block within

the Master Plan which shapes the context and
determination of all other projects within the Master
Plan structure. To make a contribution toward the
Master Plan objectives projects will need to be in
general conformity with the LDF and must play close
regard to its place shaping polices.

The LDF should be seen as the strategic framework

for the promotion of growth whereas the Master Plan
will provide the specific projects and targets which will
actually deliver the growth required to drive forward the
Herefordshire economy.



The Local Plan growth aspirations and the Master

Plan projects will become the catalyst for significant
opportunities to attract private sector investment. The
development of the Master Plan will signal a proactive
approach towards the county’s engagement with the
investment community and the delivery of development
opportunities, their location, size, scope, and design.

We are very conscious that the publication of the Master
Plan document should signal the commencement,

not finish, of the transformation of the Herefordshire
economy. Delivery of projects is key to success. The
Master Plan sets the objectives, priority projects, and
targets but to deliver projects additional resource will
need to be committed.

The delivery of the Master Plan, in terms of running
specific projects, will be assigned to a range of partners
depending on who is most appropriate as the lead.

The lead partner may wish to involve others in the
project delivery, in this case membership would not be
proscribed but would be flexible and consist of relevant
partners. This approach provides flexibility rather than
rigidity, can take advantage of capacity and experience
across partners, and, where appropriate, will be
determined through competitive procurement exercises.

Growth through Partnership

It is clearly apparent that the public sector is both
reducing in size and scale, and is not a generator of
wealth within the Herefordshire economy. To deliver

a higher value economy for the county and sustain
economic growth, with its associated benefits, there will
be a future reliance on private sector investment and
businesses to take the lead.

127

However the public sector and the council in particular,
is in the strong position of being able to influence the
environment in which the county’s businesses operate
and can create the conditions that will best enable their
growth and address our growth ambitions.

Equally the council has a role to play as the enabler of
the Master Plan. Using its resources and democratic
governance, the council, along with partners from
across the public, private and voluntary sectors,

will facilitate the evolution of the Master Plan to a
point where it becomes established policy for the
organisation, can be adopted by partners, and pitched
to the investment community.

Whilst the Master Plan is aiming to create conditions for
growth and bring forward a higher value economy it is
acknowledged that only by working in partnership can
the public, private, and educational sectors determine a
set of projects that, in combination, will deliver on these
optimum growth conditions.

81 | Economic master plan 2016



Timescale

The Master Plan describes a step change for the
Herefordshire economy. This is something that cannot
be achieved overnight, in many cases projects will
need to build a business case, attract funding, gain
permissions, complete construction, all before delivery
can commence. It is proposed that the Master Plan
builds growth over a number of years both to ensure
the enabling infrastructure is in place, and also
because the various projects within the Master Plan will
build upon each other in becoming successful. (For
example?)

It is envisaged that the Master Plan will map out activity
across Herefordshire over the next 15 years, activity will
be broken down into three five year periods to reflect
the short, medium and long term proposals. This

time period both aligns with the Local Development
Framework and provides a realistic timescale for projects
to both be implemented and have an impact.

Individual project delivery timescales will depend on
a host of decisions and therefore cannot be set with
precision, but the Plan will set out, with reasonable
expectations, the key timings and an expectation of
increasing rates of development across the county as
the projects progress.

The timescale for delivery of all projects will be regularly
monitored and reviewed. Proposals for redevelopment
in the longer term will be subject to sufficient progress
being made on early and mid-term redevelopments and
will be subject to appropriate impact tests.

Economic master plan 2016 | 82

128



Funding

The full range of funding mechanisms to support the
delivery of the plan will be investigated, this will include
government support, private sector investment, as

well as the full suite of funding options available to
Herefordshire Council including, but not limited to,
Community Infrastructure Levy, Tax Increment Finance,
and Business Improvement Districts.

These mechanisms can help support development

but the Master Plan must generate self-sustaining
investment by creating confidence in the future success
and prosperity of the county amongst developers,
investors and businesses. The Partners role will be to
ensure that the Priority Projects within the Plan are
deliverable, will deliver a contribution towards economic
growth and/or a higher value economy, and to consider
investment opportunities to enable delivery.

Moving Forwards

The role of the Plan is not to set a definitive blueprint
but a framework of policies and projects which can be
reviewed on a regular basis and as delivery commences
can be assessed as to the impact that it being had on
the economy of the County.

83 | Economic master plan 2016

129






Herefordshire Economic
Master Plan update

“General Overview and Scrutiny
Committee - Sept 2016

Herefordshire
Council



el

Plan Rationale

* The Master Plan will:

* |dentify the required conditions to enhance our economic
growth.

* Facilitate movement towards a higher value economy.

* Create better coordination as a county in our discussions
with government and the LEP.

e Seven themes — broad building blocks for investment
— A Great Place for/to: Business
Learn
Live
Visit
— Great Market Towns
— A Great Environment

— A Great Place to Get Around Herefordehire

Council



6. Key themes

A Great Place for Business

The aim is to transform Herefordshire into a high
value, knowledge economy, with a modern and diverse
commercial property stock and to be at the forefront
of innovation and the development of new sustainable
industries.

Major new and upgraded employment sites at
Rotherwas, Moreton, Three Elms and in the key market
towns will help drive the future economy of the centre.
The city in particular has enjoyed strong commercial
evelopment over the last 2 to 3 years principally
s a result of the Enterprise zone status awarded to
%olherwas.

Hereford is identified in the Core Strategy as being the
principal location for new employment growth but this
is supplemented by other allocations at Leominster,
Ledbury and Ross on Wye offices and needs to plan

for major growth. The county has had notable recent
successes with both Cargill and Heineken making recent
multimillion pound investments further cementing their
commitment to Herefordshire, the sale of x ha of land
at the Enterprise Zone demonstrates that given the
availability of well-located opportunities then investment
will follow.

Economic master plan 2016 | 16

Alongside a continued push for inward investment there
is likely to be continued growth in local companies,
some of which will look to upgrade their current space
and expand and it is important their demands for
modern accessible office space are met.

Entrepreneurial cultt

The emerging business projects include:

1ess District as a sub-r
dly routes to the stz

eton on Lugg, and the market

ss the county to

ntre at the

e small, creat
Zone developing

17 | Economic master plan 2016



A Great Place to Visit

The aim is to unlock the potential of the county as a
unique, special place to visit at a regional and national
level, offering a unique blend of heritage, architecture,
countryside walks, rural communities to explore,
modern leisure attractions, shopping, new and inspiring
cultural and arts developments.

Herefordshire is a definitively rural county. Without

the large scale visitor numbers drawn to better known
locations such as the Lakes, Peak District, or South West,
the county still has a host of attractions and events to
tempt visitors. The offer is one that is rooted in both
being local and distinctive, there is a preponderance of

The traditional accommodation offered throughout the
county will be supplemented through the provision of
a new, quality, hotel offering high end accommodation
and the potential for business conferencing. At the
other end of the size scale encouragement will be
given to the provision of a wide range of small scale
and unique accommodation experiences whether yurts,
Hobbit Holes, bivouacs, or high end camping.

To ensure a diverse and unique visitor experience this
accommodation will be offered alongside market
towns each with a specific specialisation — antiques in
Leominster, walking in Kington, Poetry in Ledbury for
example — and a range of small scale, distinctive events

ljiche festivals, quirky accommodation, and fantastic
udpod and drink. and festivals celebrating the best that the county has to
NN offer.

Potential exists to utilise the natural offer to enhance
the visitor experience with specific emphasis being
placed on the outdoor pursuits market. This will focus
on only on the year round offer gained from walking,
cycling and water sports but also on developing a series
of regular events such as long distance assault courses,
orienteering, open water swimming and mountain
biking.

Economic master plan 2016 | 22

As is expected Hereford has the most diverse visitor
offer and acts as a compelling base from which to
explore the rest of the county, in addition to traditional
features such as the Cathedral, Courtyard Theatre and
Cider Museum it has a modern offer through a multi-
screen cinema, vast range of restaurants and bars, and
other leisure activities.

The city could benefit from more diversity to its offer
and there is opportunity to consider developing the role
the river plays

¥ The emerging visit projects include:

tinuing to build a nict ftourism ¢

er quarter thin Herefor

g local commun
) be run throughout tt

n of the
elop a calendar of outdoor pursuits based around a number of sporting and outdoor activities;

d and drink C icular in the enhancement of their v

tor offer and




GET

Very Important Projects
Initial set of 25 plus VIPs — currently....
Infrastructure Investments

— Sets out HC commitment to the Plan.

Investment opportunities

— Hereford

— Herefordshire and Market Towns
 Suite of projects
« Specific projects

Developing a distinctive identity

Herefordshire
Council



NMITE

Overview

NMITE is scheduled to be a new independent, not-
for-profit, world-class teaching university, based in
Hereford that will address the skills shortage for graduate
engineers in Marches and British businesses in advanced
manufacturing, agri-engineering, data, defence, resources
security and sustainable/smart living technology sectors.

The curriculum will be targeted at the needs of
engineering and technology employers to produce
employment-ready, productive, industry relevant,
innovative, economically and financially literate graduates
who will be able communicators and project managers.

&nh a new approach to learning - based on real-

OYorld problem solving and the blending of high quality
engineering and design with communication and
employability skills targeted at the growth sectors of
the future, the NMITE project is projecting a student
population of 5,000 by 2031

NMITE are committed to the construction of a state of
the art 21st century teaching and innovation campus in
the centre of Hereford, developed on the latest ‘agile’
principles involving the construction/or refurbishment of
teaching and administrative facilities. Linked to the city
centre facilities will be laboratories and workshops and
the NMITE Application & Development centre on the
Enterprise Zone.

Economic master plan 2016 | 46

The first phase of the project will see over 1000 students
taking courses by 2021, rising to 5,000 by 2031. The
current rental market within Hereford is not geared to
meet this level of demand so students will predominately
be housed within dedicated accommodation in various
units across the city.

Crucial to our future plans is the planned creation of a new
engineering university for the UK, based in Hereford - the
New Model in Technology & Engineering (NMITE). This
exciting project to create a new, independent, not-for-
profit world class teaching university will have a game-
changing impact on the city, county and UK plc.

Delivery of the NMITE model will help to address the UK’s
skills shortage in engineering, which threatens to cripple
our national capacity for growth and frustrate our ability
to compete in the global economy. The establishment of
NMITE as a University in Hereford will provide a counter

to the net exodus of our brightest and best students and
serve 1o attract others from across the country. Inevitability
this influx of students will result in spin off companies
settling locally with benefits to the local employment and
R&D markets. The project has made rapid progress over
the course of 18 months with the private sector promoters
building a management team, developing a curriculum
and sourcing academic institutional partners and business
contributions. To establish itself, NMITE is seeking £18M
of government and European funding, with the Council
willing to invest in, and take shared risk, on the provision
of student accommodation.

Quick Facts
Sponsor
Scale

Type
Location
Investment Type
Programme

Herefordshire Tertiary Education Trust

£80m

Education and Student Accommodation

Hereford City Centre

Equity investor, developer and development funder
2018-2025

47 | Economic master plan 2016



Hereford River Quarter

Overview

Hereford is built on the banks of one of the UK's great
rivers, the Wye has always had a reputation for great
fishing and is increasingly becoming known as the
premier destination for canoeing and other water
related activity. The natural advantage provided by the
Wye is not currently capitalised upon, with access to
the river restricted as it enters the city centre, for many
visitors the location and opportunities provided by the
river remain an unknown attraction.

This project will redevelop the 300 m stretch of
riverbank, and beyond, between the Great Western Way
nd A49. Hereford Rugby Club will be relocated to a
te where they can develop their playing and spectator
facilities. Hereford Rowing Club will be given the
opportunity to redevelop their boathouse and riverside
access facilities.

The focus of the site will be on outdoor events, riverside
and water based leisure activities, and a small scale
food, drink and retail offer, accompanying a residential
presence. Enhanced access will be provided to the
riverside via Greyfriars Ave for vehicles, and for cyclists
and pedestrians via connections directly onto the Great
Western Way.

Economic master plan 2016 | 40

Leisure activities will be aimed at developing the site for
two primary purposes, firstly as a focal point for water
based activities, including canoeing and kayaking, open
water swimming, and rowing, and secondly as a city
centre based outdoor events space that is adaptable
for a range of cultural events such as festivals, theatre
performances, or music events.

As the project develops, improvements to the linkages
to the city centre will be made with enhancements

to pedestrian crossing points of the A49 made at the
Barton Road junction. Pedestrian and cycle linkages will
be incorporated within the site to create looped trails
travelling across the river, along the southern bank to
the Bishop Meadows and back via the cathedral and
city centre, thereby ensuring the project site can be
successfully incorporated within the wider city.

In time the project will become one of a number of
natural hubs within the city aimed at pulling in tourists
and visitors to sites cross the city, linked with the retail
and cultural experiences available at the Old Market and

city core, the river quarter will
ty 2 q Quick Facts

Sponsor

Scale

Type

Location
Investment Type
Programme

within this ed directly
retail opportunitie

number of n.

ned at leisure niche an localised pro

Behind the riverfront de
/ill be explored
emi-permanent festi

Herefordshire Council

£15m

Mixed use riverside regeneration

Hereford City Centre

Equity co-investment and development finance
2019-2022

41 | Economic master plan 2016



Future project development

« Master Plan is a living document that will evolve over time.

« Aim is to build a pipeline of projects

« Communities should have an opportunity to submit project
ideas

* Projects should be in conformity with the core strategy

« What would the process be for incorporating new projects
— Annual review.
— Link to monitoring.

 Including project ideas that aren’t VIP’s

Herefordshire
Council



6ET

Governance Approval Process

* Process and timeline

Cabinet Member / Officer Briefings
General Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Group Leaders Briefing

All members briefing
Cabinet

Full Council

15t & 16" September
27th September

4" October

TBC
1st December

16" December

& Herefordshire
Council



ort

GOSC Feedback

To inform the development of the plan document we are
requesting GOSC views on the following:

a.
b.
C.

The general ambition and objectives of the plan.
The scope and scale of the various projects.

The mix of projects in terms of location, sector, theme,
contribution to the Herefordshire economy.

. The intended future project development route and

opportunities for future projects to be included in the
plan.

Herefordshire
Council



A4’

Questions?

ér

Herefordshire
Council






AGENDA ITEM 9

Herefordshire
Council
Meeting: General overview and scrutiny committee
Meeting date: 27 September 2016
Title of report: Draft work programme and task and finish
groups
Report by: Governance services

Classification
Open
Key decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards affected

Countywide

Purpose

To consider the committee’s work programme and related scrutiny activities.

Recommendation

That:

(a) the draft work programme as set out at appendix 1 to the report be approved,
subject to any amendments the committee wishes to make; and

(b) a task and finish group on devolution be established to undertake the work
outlined in the draft scoping statement (Appendix 2) and the membership be
confirmed.

Alternative options
1 It is for the committee to determine its work programme to reflect the priorities facing

Herefordshire. The committee needs to be selective and ensure that the work
programme is focused, realistic and deliverable within existing resources.

Reasons for recommendations

2 The committee needs to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that
scrutiny is focused, effective and produces clear outcomes.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Governance Services on Tel: (01432) 260272
143




Key considerations

8

Draft work programme

The work programme needs to focus on the key issues of concern and be
manageable allowing for urgent items or matters that have been called-in.

Should committee members become aware of any issue they think should be
considered by the Committee they are invited to discuss the matter with the Chairman
and the statutory scrutiny officer.

Revisions to the programme since the last meeting include:

e Following discussion at the Forward Plan Briefing a proposed report on the
highway maintenance plan will now be the subject of a briefing note instead.

e The proposed report on the Travellers’ Sites Development Plan Document —
Preferred Options Consultation will be the subject of a briefing note in the first
instance and of a report later in the year.

e |tis proposed at the invitation of the cabinet member — transport and roads to
consider the outcome of consultation on the passenger transport review prior to
consideration of the matter by Cabinet in December 2016.

e The proposed addition of a report in November on Edgar Street/Hereford Football
Club

e Proposed task and finish group review of devolution (see paragraphs below)
Task and finish groups

The Leader of the Council following discussion with the Chairman of this Committee

has invited the Committee to consider options open to the council in response to the

national devolution deal agenda including the relative merits of applying to become a
full constituent member of West Midlands Combined Authority.

Cabinet on 28 July approved the Council’s application to become a non-constituent
member of the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA). The report noted that
the council could consider becoming a constituent member of WMCA. This was not
currently being recommended as there had been insufficient time to fully evaluate the
governance, democratic and economic business case for doing so. However, this
option may be considered at some point in the future. The Committee is therefore
being invited to contribute to this matter. A draft scoping statement is attached at
appendix 2.

The report to Cabinet on 28 July is available via the following link:

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50038559/Cabinet%20report%20Members%200f%20WM%20combined%20authority. pdf

9

In July the Committee requested a number of briefing notes on a range of topics
noting that aspects of these topics may subsequently be considered as subjects for
scrutiny by task and finish groups. A series of briefing notes will be issued separately
to members of the committee. If members consider that any matters warrant task
and finish group work these need to be put forward for consideration by the
committee. If approved as task and finish group topics scoping statements would
then be brought forward in due course.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Governance Services on Tel: (01432) 260272
144


http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50038559/Cabinet%20report%20Members%20of%20WM%20combined%20authority.pdf

Executive responses
10 An executive response is awaited to the report on the Community Infrastructure Levy.
Tracking of Recommendations Made by the Committee

11 A Schedule of Recommendations made and action in response to date is attached at
appendix 3.

Forward plan

12 On a number of occasions in discussing the work programme Members have referred
to the desirability of having the Forward Plan available to inform that discussion. The
current Forward plan is available to Members through the Councillors’ handbook
intranet site. Forthcoming key decisions are also available to the public under the
Forward plan link on the council’'s website:

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0&K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1

Community impact

13 The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to residents.
Equality duty

14 The topics selected need to have regard for equality and human rights issues.
Financial implications

15 The costs of the work of the committee will have to be met within existing resources.

It should be noted the costs of running scrutiny will be subject to an assessment to
support appropriate processes.

Legal implications

16 The council is required to deliver an overview and scrutiny function.

Risk management

17 There is a reputational risk to the council if the overview and scrutiny function does

not operate effectively. The arrangements for the development of the work
programme should help mitigate this risk.

Consultees

18 The Chairman and Statutory scrutiny officer meet on a regular basis to review the
work programme.

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Draft Work Programme
Appendix 2 - Draft Scoping Statement - devolution

Appendix 3 — Schedule of general overview and scrutiny committee recommendations made
and action in response

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Governance Services on Tel: (01432) 260272
145


http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0&K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1

Background papers

None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Governance Services on Tel: (01432) 260272
146



Appendix 2

General Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Draft Work Programme 2016/17

Tuesday 14 November 2016 from 9.30 am

(the budget presentation is received by the overview and scrutiny committees jointly, followed by
formal meetings of each committee)

Budget 2016/17

To consider the budget proposals for the next financial year.

Edgar Street/Hereford Football
Club

To consider future arrangements

Corporate plan

To consider the updated corporate plan.

Passenger Transport Review

To consider the consultation outcome and recommendations for
any changes to cabinet.

Tuesday 17 January 2017 at 10.00 am

Community safety update

To consider current community safety issues in Herefordshire.

To receive an update as requested on 19 January 2016.

Task and Finish Group Review -
Devolution

To make recommendations to Cabinet following the task and
finish review.

Scrutiny Recommendation
Tracking

Tuesday 7 March 2017 at 10.00 am

School examination
performance

To consider school performance for summer 2015.

April 2017

Annual Work Programme Workshop

Tuesday 9 May 2016 at 10.00 am

147




Task and Finish Groups

It is suggested that the following task Status:

and finish groups be considered:

Devolution

Scoping statement to be presented 27 September
2017

Community infrastructure levy

Executive response awaited

Briefing Notes

The following topics shall be
dealt with via briefing notes for
committee members:

issue Status:

Hoople

Strategic overview on
this provided at a
seminar on 1
December 2015.

Briefing note to be
issued setting out
background with a
view to possible
scrutiny of whether
the Company is fit for
purpose in the
Autumn

Future models of delivery of
education and children’s services
and white papers

(HSCOSC and GOSC)

Briefing note (to
include funding of
education)

Planning / Enforcement

Briefing note on
current approach,
with a view to a
possible spotlight
review later in the
year.

Impact of changes of land use in
the county

Briefing note to be
issued setting out
background to
application of Core
Strategy, policies L1
and L2 monitoring
arrangements and
mechanisms for
review.

Learning and skills

Pupil premium
benefits analysis —

Outcomes for
vulnerable groups (eg

148




free school meals)

Incorporate into
briefing note referred
to above on Future
models of delivery of
education and
children’s services

Public Transport

Review of Funding and emerging
“bus” bill

Briefing note on
timetable for bus bill
and possible impact
on the Council

Delivery of Digital Strategy

Briefing note on what
the digital strategy is
and timing of any
refresh.

Learning and skills

How well do our
arrangements meet
the needs of the
economy in
Herefordshire?

Possible Task and
Finish Group

Culture and tourism

Briefing note to be
produced on Town
and Parish Council
roles, role of
Chamber of
Commerce in
producing destination
management strategy
and the work of the
Courtyard partnership

group.

Waste Services

Produce briefing note
setting out position in
relation to waste
collection and waste
disposal contracts-
length of contracts
etc.

How does HC work with outside
bodies eg LEP and how do we
measure success?

Briefing note to be
produced on current
arrangements and
good governance
principles.

149




Seminars / Workshops

It is suggested that the following be
dealt with in the form of a seminar or
workshop for committee members:

Status:

Community Safety

At the January 2016 meeting of GOSC
it was agreed that the CSP,
Superintendent Sue Thomas, the Chief
Constable, and the PCC would give a
joint briefing on the activity of the CSP
in Herefordshire. The main reason for
this was to ensure that funding currently
provided by the PCC for the CSP would
continue after the election.

Briefing provisionally arranged but postponed
following Police and Crime Commissioner elections.

Proposed to be rearranged.

Phosphates issues e.g. levels in water
courses and impact

On 26 July GOSC agreed to review approach to this
issue after joint seminar with Powys Council (20
September 2016)

Future matters

Annual Review of Economic master plan -
September 20177

(see gosc decision 26/7/16)

Minerals and waste policy

Consider after consultation on draft plan has
been received and plan revised.

150




TGT

Schedule of General Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommendations made and action in response

Appendix 3

Meeting item Recommendations Action Status
10 June Executive Response — | RESOLVED: That Completed
15 Review Of. Ieasg (a) the Executive’s responses be noted;

restructuring with

Hereford United

Executive Response — | RESOLVED: That Briefing note on Completed

Balfour Beatty Living s, ) customer contact

Places — Public Realm (a) the Executive’s responses be noted; and statistics issued 8

Services (b) a briefing note on progress with the responses | September 2015.

to the task and finish group report on Balfour Briefing note on ongoing

Beatty Living Places - Public Realm Services be
provided within six months.

highway
maintenance plan
to be issued
September 2016. A
further update on
the Public Realm
actions potentially
required

Task and Finish Group
Report — Development
Management Planning

RESOLVED: That

(a) Subject to the amendments to
recommendations 1, 12 and 18 above, the report
of the task and finish group on Development
Management (Planning) be agreed for submission
to the Executive; and

(b) The Executive’s response to the review be
reported to the first available meeting of the
committee after the Executive has approved its

Submitted to
executive

Reported to
Committee 21 July
2015. Update

Updated: 19-Sep-16 17:13



[A°]’

response.

issued via briefing
note on 18
December 2015.

Further update to

be issued for 26 Completed
July 2016.
Work Programme RESOLVED: That
(a) the draft work programme, as amended, be
noted; Group established
(b) atask and finish group on the smallholdings and work Combpleted
estate be established to undertake the work completed. P
outlined in the draft scoping statement; and
Y Sy o0 ocioauPrOVISon be | meport schedul
g- for November 2016 | ongoing
21 July Executive Response to | RESOLVED: That Completed
2015 Committee (a) the Executive response be noted; and
Recommendations on o
School Examination (b) a briefing note be prepared on the Briefing note issued
Performance Herefordshire Food Strategy and its linkages to 18 December 2015
schools.
Executive Response to | RESOLVED: That Completed

the Task and Finish
Group Report on
Development

(a) the draft Executive response be noted; and

(b) a briefing note on progress with the response




€at

Management
(Planning)

be provided within six months.

Update issued 18
December 2015

30
September
2015

The Development of a
Schools Capital
Investment Strategy

RESOLVED:

That it be recommended to the executive that the
Schools capital investment strategy principles:
1.include reference to the need to be responsive
to anticipated growth and reductions in
communities, including the key role of local
schools in the sustainability of growth villages in
Core Strategy policies RA1 and RA2;

2. (within principle 8) take school journey
distance, mode and time into account, not only in
terms of environmental and transportation
impacts but also the effect of journey times on
pupils, with schools encouraged to keep school
travel plans up-to-date;

3. recognise what schools can and should offer,
outside school hours, to local communities —
such as libraries, information hubs, meeting
venues, open space etc.;

4. provide assurance that the authority would
provide backing and support for academies to
make bids for central funding to improve
infrastructure;

5. include consideration of county boundary
transitions, including dialogue with adjoining
authorities to ensure that provision was not

Incorporated into

strategy and being
taken forward in its
implementation on
a local area basis.

Briefing note issued
18 December giving
further information
on school places
and travel plans.

Completed




121

considered in isolation;

6. clarify how the authority would assure itself
that ‘There would be an appropriate number of
faith places’ (principle 3); and

7. revise principle 11 e. to ‘Participatory
budgeting as a means of enabling local
communities to assist in supporting a local
school’.

Work Programme A briefing note be prepared on digital issues. tbc Ongoing
27 Task and Finish Group | RESOLVED: That _ Submitted to the Completed
October Report — Smallholdings | (&) That the report and recommendations of the Executive
2015 Estate (County Farms) | task and finish group: smallholdings estate

(county farms) be agreed for submission to the
executive subiject to:

i. the removal of Councillor Harvey’s name from
the group’s composition (page 3 of the report);

ii. the deletion of option b) from recommendation
1 (page 13); and

iii. the removal of the words ‘on the remaining
estate should be let’ from recommendation 5
(page 14).

(b) The executive’s response to the review be
reported to the first available meeting of the
committee after the executive has approved its
response.

Briefing note
including response
issued 18
December 2015




GqaT

17 Budget and medium RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet Council did levy an | Completed

November | Term Financial Strategy | that consideration be given to the merits of arise | additional 2%

2015 — Draft prior to Funding | in council tax of more than the 1.9% cap, with precept at in

Announcement consideration given to the best mechanism for respect of adult

advancing this should Council agree to this social care in
measure reflecting the wishes of the significant response to a
response to the priorities and budget Government
consultation, particularly in relation to retention initiative.
of specific non-statutory services.

19 Update on home to Resolved

January School Transport That: _

2016 (am) | Provision A) The relevant officers work to produce a
briefing note on home to school transport to Briefing note issued | Completed
present to the General Overview and Scrutiny July 2016.
Committee for July 2016 _ _
B) The item be returned to the scrutiny committee Listed in Work Completed
for another annual review in January 2017 programme.
C) It be investigated what other scrutiny activity To be reviewed in _
would be of benefit regarding home to school January 2017. ongoing
transport

Local Transport Plan Resolved that: Reported To Completed

The following recommendations be put to cabinet
regarding the Local Transport Plan:

A) A recommendation be made that the Local
Transport Plan (LTP) be subject to areview every
five years in accordance with Department for
Transport guidance

B) LTP4 Vision to be amended to include the
objective “and reduce congestion and increase

Cabinet. Confirmed
at Council on 20
May that
recommendations
would be reflected
in Plan.




96T

accessibility by less polluting and healthier forms
of transport than the private car.”

19 Herefordshire RESOLVED: . Briefing Ongoing
January Community Safety a) it be recommend that an all member briefing be provisionally
2016 (pm) | Partnership Strategy arranged on the CSP and related matters arranged but
and Related including the office and Police and Crime postponed following
Performance Commissioner, Chief Constable, the Police and Crime
Superintendent of Herefordshire and other CSP Commissioner
partners. elections.
b) that the chair and vice chair investigate what
areas of the CSP it may be of benefit to conduct Proposed to be
further scrutiny work. rearranged in the
autumn.
8 March | School Examination Resolved that: _ The council ongoing
2016 Performance a) The committee makes recommendations to responsibilities form
cabinet on how they might part of the
improve the efficiency of the school improvement | Herefordshire
framework and strategy, School
especially in relation to governance in light of Improvement

likely reduced resourcing in

future.

b) Council responsibilities for education are
clarified and sufficiently

resourced. Additionally, that the monitoring of
governing bodies in meeting

performance standards also be sufficiently
resourced. Should the Director

at any time find that resources are not sufficient,
this must be reported to

Cabinet and the General Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at once.

Framework and are
based on statutory
duties.

Further
consideration of the
role and resourcing
of the local authority
will form part of the
local authority’s
response to the
national
consultation on




LGT

c) A briefing note be produced in regard to
authorised absences to inform

future recommendations of the committee.

d) The committee consider the findings of the
Health and Social Care

Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s early years
provision task and finish

group in relation to referral rates for speech and
language development.

e) The committee’s suggestions in regard to the
teaching of phonics be

brought to the attention of the early years task
and finish group reporting

the health and social care overview and scrutiny
committee.

schools funding
formula 2016 and
the further national
work on the roles
and responsibilities
of councils in
relation to
education

(d and e have been
done)

Marches Local
Enterprise Partnership

Resolved: That

@) the committee commend and encourage
further the engagement of small

businesses within the activity of the Marches
LEP.

b) The work of the Marches LEP in cooperation
with neighbouring and other

Local Enterprise Partnerships, in particular the
equivalent bodies across

national borders be encouraged.

c) That the Marches LEP ensure that the delivery
of accounts and reporting is

made more clear and the availability of such
documentation to the public is

ensured.

d) That the committee recommend to the board of
the Marches LEP that a

2015/16 accounts
are in process of
being completed
and will be placed

on the LEP website.

Draft accounts will
be going to the LEP

ongoing




86T

summary of accounts be published in
conjunction with the annual report
on the activity of the Marches LEP.

Board on 3 August.

Annual report
published with
Marches Enterprise
joint Committee
papers on 31 May
2016.

4 May 16 | Suggestions from the RESOLVED: That a working party be set up by The Chairman will ongoing
public officers to discuss the detail of the issues be meeting with the
surrounding the definitive Map Chairman of the

Local Access

Forum over the

summer to discuss

the approach to

taking this forward.
Task and Finish Group | RESOLVED that: o Submitted to Response
Report — Community (a) the report of the task and finish group: Executive. awaited from the
Infrastructure Levy community infrastructure levy be approved and executive.

the findings be submitted to the executive

(b) the recommendations of the task and finish
group: community infrastructure levy be
approved as follows:

Recommendation 1: The ‘Preliminary Draft
Charging Schedule’ be carried forward
unchanged as the ‘Draft Charging Schedule’;
Recommendation 2: Urgent consideration be
given to the need for arobust governance
structure to be developed for the administration
of CIL in advance of CIL being adopted;
Recommendation 3: That Parish Councils be




66T

supported by clear advice to assist with the
implementation of the CIL charging process prior
to any collected CIL monies being spent;
Recommendation 4: That the CIL charging
schedule and its implementation be kept under
review.

(c) subject to the review being approved, the
executive’s response to the review be reported to
the first available meeting of the committee after
the executive has approved its response.

26 July
2016

Economic Master Plan

the cabinet member—economy and corporate
services be invited to consider the following
recommendations:

o Consideration be given to ways of pooling
ideas for economic development through less
structured approaches such as a think tank.

¢ An inventory should be made of the County’s
strengths and opportunities for synergy be
then identified.

e Clarity should be sought as to how the
planning framework accommodates farm
diversity proposals, for example in relation to
semi-permanent structures such as log cabins
and whether that framework is appropriate.

e Theinvitation to a GOSC member to
participate in meetings with chief executive,
director and cabinet member on the
development of the Masterplan be accepted.

e The further report proposed to be submitted
to the committee in September 2016 should
include highlights of lessons learned in
relation to the implementation of the 2011-16
economic development plan and how these

Submitted to the
executive for
consideration.




09T

might inform the development of the new
Masterplan.

e There should be cross-party engagement and
engagement with all Members in developing
the Plan.

e An alternative word to masterplan should be
found to describe the plan.

e The plan should take account of the value of
the arts and tourism to the County’s economy.

e Consideration should be given to how best to
maximise the promotional opportunities for
Herefordshire. and

(b) consideration of the draft economic
masterplan be added to the committee’s work
programme for September 2016 together with
an annual review of the effectiveness of the
plan thereafter.

Report on agenda
for 27 September.

Communication
Strategy

RESOLVED:
That (a) the communication protocols be
subject to further clarification and consideration
and a further report on them made to the
Committee; and

(b) that, subject to a above, the
following recommendations be made to inform
cabinet’s consideration of the strategy
communication strategy with associated
communication protocols for the period 2016-
2019:
. the use of a chat facility on the website
should be pursued taking into account how an
operator’s time can most effectively be used;
. the opportunity for the community to

Report made to
Committee on 5
September.

Matters referred to
Cabinet for
consideration.

10




T9T

interact on-line quickly and easily should be fully
explored;

. clarification be provided as to how it is
intended to implement the “spend within our
means” approach outlined in section 3 of the
strategy at appendix 1to the report at p41 of the
agenda papers: “making tough but necessary
choices which will include ceasing to provide
some services and working with communities to
help them run services important to them”;

. the wording of paragraph 5.13 of appendix
2 to the report relating to the access of the press
to premises be reviewed and clarified.

5
September
2016

Four Year Financial
Settlement

RESOLVED:

That

@ in order to make a recommendation on
whether or not to accept the 4 year funding
settlement a further meeting should be convened
to consider alternative options including
information from comparator authorities; and

(b) Cabinet be recommended to consider the
points made by the Committee and the further
information the Committee considered was

Further meeting
arranged for 19
September.

Report made to
Cabinet on 21

Completed

required in order to make a recommendation to September.
full Council on whether or not to accept the four
year funding deal.

Statement of RESOLVED: That Cabinet be recommended to Scheduled for

community involvement
consultation,
communications and
programme to adoption

consider amending the revised draft statement of
community involvement to take account of the
amendments proposed in the above table.

consideration by
Cabinet later in the
year.

11




29T

Communication
Protocol for Members

RESOLVED: That cabinet be recommended that
further consideration be given to the following
matters in relation to the communication protocol
for members:

. In relation to paragraph 3.1 of the protocol
further clarification was needed on when it was
appropriate to use the word “Council” in
communications when referring to such matters
as Council policy and when further distinction
was needed between a decision taken at full
Council and a decision taken by an individual
cabinet member or an officer.

Report on Cabinet
agenda for 21
September.

12




	Agenda
	 
	7 Customer Services and Libraries
	GOSC library and customer presentation - september 2016

	8 Economic Master plan
	Appendix 1 - fin - ECONOMIC MASTER PLAN HFD1690 V3
	Appendix 2 Master Plan update - GOSC Sept 2016

	9 Work programme
	3  GOSC work programme 2016-17 (19 September 2016)
	Appendix 3 GOSC Recommendation Tracking 2016 - 19 sept 2016


